(6)(6)

Col AF/JA

From: SEE) MAJ, DoD OGC

Sent: h 09, 2004 4:57 PM
To: (bX6) Col AF/JA

Sir

Don't know if you remember that we finally "cracked the code" with respect to getting access to some of the Army Tiger
Team’s materials after much acrimony and debats.

I now have access to a few CDs worth of material - thought you would be interested in this particular gem - | find it highly

ironic. ..

MC-First Cases_dac

No more emails today - | promise...

(b)(6)

Major, USAF

Department of Defense, Office of the General Counsel
Office of Military Commissions, Prosecution

1931 Jefferson Davis Highway
Suite 532, Arlington, VA 22202

Phone: @(6’
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(b)(6)

Col AF/JA

—

From: i |MAJ, DoD OGC

Sent:  Tuesday, March 09, 2004 2:06

To: Col AF/JA

Subject: FW: my depariure
Sir

You know the oniy reason you are getting all these is that | told you | was sure | could keep the emails down to
one a day or $0...

v/ir

(6)6)

-----Orjainal Message--—-
FromCPT, DoD OGC
Sent: Tuesday, March 09, 2004 14:00
To:i [[®&])coL, DaD 0GC
Cc®® ] CAPT, DoD OGC
Subject: my departure

Sir,

| recently spoke with CAPT®X® | egarding the upcoming (11 Apr 04) expiration of my orders. As [ told her,
am asking that the Air Force assign me to an alternate unit effective 12 Apr 04.

| know you are personally aware of my many concerns regarding our execution of the mission, organizational
integrity and functioning as a team. It is those concerns that form the basis far my request for reassignment. |
don't feel | can best serve the United States in this environment.

(b)(6)




BYE) ICol AF/JA

B)(6
From: ik (b)(6) |MAJ, DoD OGC
Sent; onday, March 08, 2004 7:46 AM
To: ®B —Col AFMA

Sir,

I will try to keep the emails down to a dull roar this week, but a few concerns that | couldn’t get into Friday night.

1. The Marine 0-5s told me that their fegal advisor to the Commandant has emailad them and requested to know "why
the Air Force has a problem with the Marines and why the AF is saying the Marines are screwed up." Sounds like

somebody is casting this as an interservice namecalling event, but on our peon level, | believe the Marines are attributing it
to[®X®) Jand | as being responsible for the original leaks that led to questions by their people.

2. | went ahead and confronted [BX®) ___ Jabout opening his big mouth with Cdas extremely frightened
(I think because he thought | would rat hlm out to the AF) He told me that it was that had initiated the contact and
that had then asked him what his[B® | oplmon was of @ | {think in pant to justify his conversation with
told me that he had heard from le" that there were problems with [B](] and he related to me that he
had heard that [B){] had been disrespectful t had walked out on him and then been counseled for his conduct.

This is the BS issue that | told you about some weeks back. While | realize that the AF would think this e is complete
nonsense, | worry about it because it is clear that our opponents here cannot find a means of attackmg% n the merits
so they are attempting to run him down through other means. You know how such issues can have a life of their own and
no one is quelling this one. Col was present for this alleged disrespactful behavior and didn’t say a word. From
talking with (@& ] m I think it is particularly interesting that [B)EY] actually encouraged[®® __to chastise [BX€] So
-‘ [(B)8) | is really encouraging this environment and 1his is now the fourth or fifth person | have heard relate this story about

[(6)8) ] behavior.

3. | talked with our new deputy Navy Capt(e)6) - she was told 30 min before she was appointed the deputy that she
would be the new deputy, but she was not told why {other than a statement that needed to be able to focus on his

case). There was absolutely no acknowledgment sither to her or to the group as to why we really needed a new deputy.
The supporters nevertheless see this as a slight of Cdr and they blame us.

On the good side, | did get a pretty good parking spot this morning:

QL Major, USAF

Department of Defense, Office of the General Counsel
Office of Military Commissions, Prosecution

1931 Jefferson Davis Highway
Suite 532, Arlington. VA 22202
Phonc:l‘b)(e)

Fax: |(PX6)
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(b)(6)
Col AF/JA
(b)(6)

From: MAJ, DoD OGC
Sent: Monday, March 01, 2004 5:41 PM
To cm AFIA
Ce: BX® — ICPT, DoD OGC
Subject: Lunch at the Army Navy Club

Sir

Followup conversation with BG Hemmingway today during the trip over and then an hour fong lunch at the Army Navy club.
He emphasized to me that this was supposed to be “away from prying eyes," which | took to mean that Col i and Cdr
weren't supposed to know about it,

1. He clearly believed there was a lapse of security and he was very interested in finding out who had talked to TJAG. In
fact, his first comment was “someone has obviously been talking to TJAG's office" or words to that effect. | told him that it
wasn't necessarily someone going to TJAG - that the office had made a relatively poor showing during the TJAG briefing

that may have raised some concerns - while that may have been at least paniaily a fib, didn't want to rat anyone out either,

g (b)(6 b)<6)
o told me that he had to brief Mr{BX8)__]in preparation for a mig w/ the SECDEF, TJAG, Ms[P®_Jand M

said he needed to know if there were any problems. [ laid it out for him in great detall but on at least on some
points he was fairly unreceplive - paricularly as it related to quality of evidence in our possession and proof problers.

3. He clearly had an agenda of attempting to valldate the theory of liability. He claimed that TJAG has been talking to the
other TJAGs about the conspiracy theory ressed concems that this just wouldn't work. BG Hemmingway
stated that he had run the charge shest b;i(b)“” iand (©)©) land that both had made positive comments
about the charge sheet. My efforts to try to explain to him the difference between the possibility of proving the case in
theory and proving the case in fact with these fairly low level actors were unsuccessful. The key problem here is that

[®)6) |don't have access to the actual evidence in the first few cases and likely don't realize the problems
attendant in proving up a vast conspiracy by a compartmentalized and fragmented organization - their perspective is the
war crimes tribunal prossecutions where there are widespread atrocities openly committed by organized groups known to a
significant number of witnesses and the offenders are physically present at the scene (aka the Serbian Army).

4. He was receptive as to the management problems and the total failure of the management during Cdr solo
tenure. When | expressed the lack of candor (or outright dishonesty) exhibiled by the Chief and Deputy, he seemed at a
loss as to how to deal with it. | also emphasized that management issues aside, these horses weren't going to be able to
get the job done on the first 2 cases. He clearly agreed that this was a problem, but stated that it would be impossible at
this stage to remove the lead counsels (at (east

5. He fold me that he knewas planning on leaving and wondered if she was one of the ones complaining. |
avoided talking about what | knew about her depariure, but suggested that she had witnessed firsthand many of the case
preparation problems and that she was frustated by the dishonesty and double dealing exhibited by Col [@X8) ] in
addressing the problems - particularly on Hamden (the driver case).

6. He was also not very receptive {0 the appearance of fairness problems. In particular, he doesn’t seem 10 understand
why his designation as the deputy appointing authority is going to be viewed unfavorably. | urged him that the only way to
fix any of the appearance problems would be for BG Hemmingway to recuse himself from the first few cases and bring MG
Altenberg in to review the charges and case files and make his own independent determination, but it seems clear that BG
Hemmingway doesn't think this can happen.

7. BG Hemmingway seesmed very concerned with internal personnel issues and although 1 repeatedly tried 10 broach the
topic, did not seem 1o want to talk about the big picture items like the problems with mission prioritization (i.e. intel over
everything). | reengaged with him this afternoon via email regarding lack of command authority and inability to gdirect
movement or compliance from our "supporting” agencies.

In sum, BG Hemmingway seemed floored by the depth of the problems and did not exhibit a willingness or perhaps the
ability to address deepseated issues. My concern is that he feels powerless to address the systemic problems and is
seeking ways 1o make cosmetic fixes.



As usual, we remain at your disposal should you nead any furthar info.

vir
{b}(B)

Major, USAF

Department of Defense, Office of the General Counsel
Office of Mihiary Commissions, Prosecution
1931 Jefferson Davis Highway

Suite 5(2{5 jine 22202
Phone

Fax: ['b)(e>
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(b)(8)
Col AF/JA

(b)(8)
From: | MAJ, DoD OGC

Sent: Fridav Eshriiary 27, 2004 9;32 AM
To: feres Col AF/JA
B B
OMG Raorg Paperdot CMC Reony
Pewerpanl.ppi
Hey sir,

These are some notions | have heen fooling with for some time - you have a paper copy of the first document, but the one
included here has been revised and includes some recommendations at the end

Don't know if it is useful to you or not, but perhaps at (sast a memory jogger.

| could do a lot better with the powerpoint if | understood what the intel relationship is, but | really can't quite figure it out.
The big thing I'm trying to show there is that a purple commander has the ability to prioritize missions and resolve conflicts
where 2 DoD lsvel agency does not the same ability without having to run to the SECDEF on a regular basis.

v/r
(b)(6)

Major, USAF

Department of Defense, Office of the General Counset
Office of Military Commissions, Prosecution

1931 Jefferson Davis Highway

Suite 532. Avlington, VA 22202

Phone: (b)(6)

Fax: [(b)6) -
GMEMENTIALITY NOTICE: This elecuonic UEIIISITIISSIOH may contain atter daCTor information protected under the
attorney-client privilege, boUTOfwwineharsgr er the Freedom of Information Act, 5 USC 552. Do not

release outside of DoD channelsauitisrt=prTOT authorizalion oy receive this transmission in exror, please notity the |
sendar |


































| | (
LtCol, DoD-OGC

|(b)(6)
From: LtCol, DoD-OGC

(b)(6)

Sent: Thursday, February 26, 2004 12:11 PM

To: [(®)6) |

Subject: RE: FBIRreport of Detainee Abuse

I think you're referring to my phone call to[B)XE) | yesterday. Basically, two of our
prosecutors heard a story from an FBI agent (JTTF NY agent [(B)6) } where he confided

to them over drinks that he saw some troubling things while serving in Bagram in the Dec
p1/Jan 02 timeframe I believe.

Keep in mind that I'm relating what (0)6) angd|®® told me what |O©

said while they were at a restaurant having drinks, but this basically is what I know of
the story. was at the end of an in-processing line; he was taking pictures of the
detainees for the FBI. After the first 30 or so detainees,[B}f) |started observing that
the detainees were in more pain, and some of them had feces running down their legs. On
one occasion,|(P)E) walked into a room adjacent to where he took pictures and saw an
individual in Army BDUs w/ a finger or fingers in a detainees' rectum. The individual
said something like, "Take my picture." of courgse. declined to do this and thought
it odd. I'm not sure how this came out, but somehow said something like, "you're
the doctor, arem't you?", and the guy basically said no (although maybe he was a medic or
corpsman, I don't know). Next to the person was a bucket of vaseline w/ nasty feces and
maybe blood in it, which doesn't sound very medical to me. The guy eventually figured out
that he'd been talking to an FBI agent and disappeared. '

B
®¥6)  |ana [BE |didn't ask any questions, but over time, especially el has become
concerned that this_information should be reported in case an offense has been committed.
That's why I called/®® | Obviously, you need to do the right thing with this info,

whateve cu determine that to be, but if it's possible, we'd like to protect|®® |and
confidence in this (a.nd for that matter), go if there's a way to
handle this in a discreet way, that would be appreciated. B2lso, would appreciate it if
you could keep me in the loop as to if and how this info is used.

Thanks, and give a call if you wish to discuss further.
r/

Ltco1 [P©® | wsme

Prosecutor, DoD Office of Military Commissions
|(b)(5) |

Sent: Thurgday, February 26, 2004 6:09 AM
To: [(B)E) | (E-mail)
Subject: FBIRreport of Detainee Abuse

foxen | Can you resend me the email you sent while I was away on the FBI reported detainee
abuse in Afghanistan? Thanks

(b)(B)
Deputy Special Agent in Charge/Chief of Investigations
DOD Criminal Investigations Task Force

Office - [(B)(®B)
Cell -

[(b)(6) ] (8IPR) ; — A
G} NIPR) (/Zm CAp-oe




e LtCol, DoD OGC

Y6
From: s LtCol, DoD OGC

Sent: Monday, March 22, 2004 13:08
To: H MAJ, DoD OGC
Subject: RE: Col EyesOmiy—

I've done as you asked (read the betow carefully), and took quite a bit of time digesting all of this over the weekend.

The below does help add some context, and | appreciate your effort to reach out to me and try to explain your comments.
However, the thougntfut, temperate nature of the below e-mail is in stark contrast to your vitriolic e-mail that has so hurt
many of us and this organization as a whole. | have always worked hard, | have always tried 1o listen and to be honest,
and | don't feel that 1 deserved that. | can only take it personally when you say relatively nice things to my face, but behind
my back say that you hold me in “utter contempt.” Or when you say to my face that you have no problem with me, it's not
about me, but behind my back lobby for me to be fired. And maybe m wrong, but | presume that Capt [®)(] consulted you

in writing his e-mail. Read it for yourself. | say the same thing back at you — if you think that your e-mails were temperate, '

reasonable, or wanranted, then you and i don't see the same world at all.

After your “shameful” speech, | really felt the need to say something 1o you, because | firmly believe that your e-mail, as
well a was what were shameful. COL advising the rest of us of the serious allegations you two have made
againsT us, T seems to me, pales in comparison. | just don't know when or why you and Capt made the leap from
expressing frusirations ang systemic concerns to conducting personal attacks and making half-baked allegations. Surely
this was not the right way fo handie this.

Lco®® ]
_____ Or i e
From:2® MAJ, DoD 0GC

en ednesdav_March 17, 2004 07:48

S = W
Tof®®  |LtCol, DoD OGC
Subject; FW: Col By

| know that you are angry with me and 1 know you disagree with the vast majority of what I'm doing, but it is
important for me to let you know that | really tried to avoid it coming to something like this.

Maybe you don't believe me, but | would ask you to carefully look at this email and note when it was sent (our
reorganization happened the next day).

(b)(6) _
already has a copy, but | wanted you to have it as well.

If you can honestly say that you disagree with any part of this email, then it is clear that we just don't see the same
world at all.

——0riginal Message——
From: O0L, Dob OGC

Sent: hursday, December 18, 2003 19:32
To: |(B)X6) MA), DoD OGC
D ry=omr—

Subject: RE: Col

Thank you for taking the time to write this emaii to me.
You have obviously done a lot of thinking about it.

| want you to come to the Pentagon tomorrow to discuss it with me---give me a call in the morning and we will set

up atime to meet,




coL

1A1, DoD OGC
Sent: Thursday, December 18, 2003 17:45
To: COL, DoD OGC

Subject: Col [(0)6)] EyecOmiy—

Risgk Assessment — Col Pyes-Oniy—
. Sir,

1 consider this document to be a protected disclosure to you as my military supervisor. Idon’t
want to be placed in the situation where this document is reviewed with Commander[( |- not
because 1 have a problem with Commander[( | but because I know he will perceive it as an attack
on his leadership when il is absolutely not that at all. Ihave great respect for the Commander,
but Thave certain concerns that are very troubling to me and 1 don’t think that the Commander is
in & position to resolve them.  If the Commander is made aware of this document, you can
consider this to be my request for reassignment because my position on the team will be
untenable. I wouldn’t be sending you this document, but for the fact that these concerns are
keeping me up at night and 1 am convinced that we are ineffectively handling our mission here.

I put this in writing in the hopes that I could effectively articulate my concemns. I realize that
these issues are not my call and I realize that I get no vote, On the other hand, T feel strongly
-enough about these things that I am willing to vote with my feet. So here goes:

I understand the “if we build it they will come™ philosophy of trying to gef a case to trial, but [
am extremely concerned that our lack of a common understanding of a long range strategy (or the
logistical requirements to carry it out) creates a significant potential for faiture either in
perception or in fact

Despite what anyone says, this is complex litigation — when you are dealing with classification of
information, interagency cooperation, multiple jurisdiction motions, multiple in

" limine/suppression motions, multiple defendants, you are talking about complex litigation, I also
believe that I have relatively good credentials to say this is complex litigation - I am one of the
few people in this office who can say they have been part of complex litigation, used altematives
to testimony on a significant scale, managed documents on a significant scale, etc, etc- when I
say we are at 25% of what we need, that’s not just a pie in the sky number —in fact, I think itis a
fairly conservative number given the vast number of first impression issues we will be dealing
with,
- but we arc not managing these casos as a complex litigation cffort - we do not have a corporate
strategy with respect Lo discovery, litigation support, case investigation/perfection and that’s what
we need to be doing in addition to preparing for our {irst couple of cases.

I see 8 specific interrelated problems:

1. Lack of overall mmanagement, strategy or direction — This is not a personal attack by any

means, but I believe that the current team organization is untenable and is likely to lead {0
embatrassing results. 'We have a situation where the presumptive trial lead is not only managing
the very important job of assembling the first litigated case, he is also attempting to accomplish
the at least equally critical job of managing a major historic multi-case litigation effort involving
10 Iawyers and potentially 50-100 cases with significant discovery issues and unprecedented

2




{ !
legal, political and media {ssues. This is an impossible set of responsibilities for any one person.
At the same time, it has the potential to lead to distorted strategic decisions — where our manager
has a “one case, let’s get it to trial,” focus, it is very hard for him to view the long position,

What we really need is someone with complex litigation feam management experience who can
manage cases, keep abreast of the long term strategy, and who manages all of us on a daily basis
to ensure maximum utilization — we aren’t getting that. [ understand why you have to be where
you are, but we need another one of you to be over here managing the Prosecution and we need
our Commander working full tilt on his case (because I presume that he couldn’t give up his
position on the first litigated case to be the full time manager only).

As a practical matter, T also think we really need O-6 type powet to stand on CITF, other
agencies and get things moving because that’s not happening at near the pace it needs to be
happening and it is taking our team chiefs out of case preparation,

2. Lack of understanding of mission/priorities — the whole ballgame here is proving the

existence of the Al Qaida criminal enterprise and the case for individual accountability as a
participant or as an aider/abetter — I would bet a paycheck that if you individually questioned
each member of the team, you would hear significantly different understandings of what evidence
we need to present, what witnesses we need to use, what documents we need to use, how much
of that stuff we have, how much we still need or even what the theory of criminal liability is.

In my opinion, we do not have a sufficient understanding that this is the focus and we do not
have sufficient resources devoted to what amounts to 80% of the case. The idea that each team
chief is going to decide what to put on for this component of the case borders on ludicrous — this
HAS to be the substantially the same for at least the first few rounds of cases and it is a waste of
resources for anyone to be preparing this patt of the case separately. Moreover, this is going to
be a fairly substantial evidentiary presentation - many documents, multiple witnesses - We
should have at least 3-4 people working as a team on this part of the casc - regardless of which
case ends up being the first one, this part has to be the same- -

3. Lack of communication/ understanding of the ongoing cases and lack of crossflow of

information - we are working in a vacuum - there is little or no crossflow of information - T have
no idea what the team chiefs are working on on a given day- teams have little or no idea what
other teams are working on - it's ludicrous that everyone in this office isn't substantially familiar
with the first 3-4 cases, what evidence we have, what our LIMFAC:s are, etc. Most of the team
has no idea as to what kinds of big picture evidence has been requested, what we still need, what
we intend to usc it for, etc.

4. Lack of CITE/FBI/Other Agency interaction/cooperation/suppoit — every time I make an
inquiry related to CITF efforts, [ am dismayed at the lack of focus/lack of understanding/lack of
cooperation — we don’t know what they have, they don’t know what they have, we don’t know
what they are doing, and they don’t know what we want them to do, Tdon’t believe that CITF
understands what we are actually trying to prove, what we need from them, what we can actually
use in trial, etc. Talso don’t believe that CITF could possibly ramp up to prepare more than a few
cases for trial. The same is true for FBI, DOJ et al - the fact that we don’t know what other
agencies might have on our people (incriminating or exculpatory) only underscores this point, T
think the public or our management for that matter would be shocked at the lack of help we are
getting from other government agencies or our own investigative agency and I doubt that our
relatively meager progress with these groups is going to be sufficient to get cases moving in an
acceptable manner. We clearly need a substantial DOJ and FBI and Intel and OGA liason effort

3




to take advantage of the substantial resources they have availaole and I don't think we are making
any real progress on this either,

5. Discovery Plan or lack therof

Some people believe that the actual discovery that we will have to preduce may be fairly limited,
but I don’t believe we are going into this with a realistic expectation of how much time discovery
battles take, how big they can get, what kind of manning, equipment and resources you might
need even when things go your way. Like with the theory of criminal liability, this is an issue
that affects every case and we don’t have an overall plan or sufficient resources devoted to this.
This is probably a full time job even now for an attorney, a patalegal and a few contractors — if
we get going with 1 or more litigated cases, this is a full time effort for 2-3 attorneys and a
significant number of paralegals, contractors, translators, etc.

'In particular, we don’t have sufficient resources devoted to establishing and implementing NOW
an ovetall plan for document collection, validation, management, storage, copying, etc etc—and
that’s just documents...

6. Lack of litigation support

a. Paralegal/Admin Support— I don’t believe that we have any idea how much work this will be
if we get a well-planned defense attack on even one case, We are not staffed to address such an
attack. For every litigated case that we plan to roll out, we will need a dedicated admin person
just for that case, maybe more like 2-3,

b. No translator on staff — we are dealing with at least 2 difficult languages and probably more
and we still have not been able to secure even one translator,

¢. Intel Comnunity Support — we are going to have major classification and access to info
issues, potentially on a massive scale. We don’t appear to be getting sufficient cooperation from
the intel community and we lack sufficient resources on our staff to do anything about that. Any
major litigation effort dealing with even a small number of these issues would have a dedicated
staff (intel officers, security classification experts, cleared analysts) to work that picce.

d. Investigative Support to perfect cases — every war crimes tribunal and cvery significant fed ct
terrorist prosecution has dedicted investigators to perfect the case for trial — CITF is not filling
this bill and the fact that we aren’t effectively raising this issue is going to become readily
apparent in the next round of cases if it doesn’t hecome apparent in our first 4,

7. Problem of Outsider Status — There is a severe void between the people who have been here
for a year and us newcomers, The old-timers had to labor under the very unreasonable conditions
of having a mandate to prepare cases, but insufficient access to investigative resources or
evidence. As they have worked so hard over a year to get to this point, in my humble opinion,
they have lost some of the objectivity they might normally have to realistically assess the cases
and propetly address the various shortcomings I have previously detailed. Because they have
labored under such unreasonable conditions for so long, they see the fairly limited progress that
has been made in evidence collection, document production etc as a vast step forward., Some of
us newcomers see the process as still wocfully inadequate and unlikely to be remedied in time for
trial. One consequence of this phenomena is that the original members of the team sce some of
the new members of the team as troublemakers because we just don’t see much progress and we
raise concerns about the limitations that have been placed on us.

The environment has devolved into a “shut up and color” environment. If we were dealing with
a base legal office or a UCMJ prosecution team I would have no problem with being told to stay
- inmy lane, “that decision has already becn made,” “I’'m not interested in your opinion on that,”

etc. However we are talking ahout a case of first impression where ne one can really predict the
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fall out - «if we make mistakes it will have repercussions for our country, our services, our
profession and our individual futures so it is absolutely unacceptable that we are told to “stay in
our lane.” Moreover, many of the decisions that have been made seem to have been predicated

on assumptions that are clearly invalid or at least unrealistic (i.e. rough justice).

What this environment does is shut down any discussion - aty constructive criticism. I
absolutely understand that too many cooks can spoil the stew and even people that ask good
questions can suffer from talking too much, But that doesn’t excuse the environment we have,
My perception is that the staff has divided into 3 camps:

a. a group that says the train has left the station, we’re stuck with what we have, so let’s make
the best of it and hope we get a case to trial because then things will be better (and don’t ask
questions because that may derail the train.)

b. a group that is concerned and/or doesn’t understand or agree with what is going on, but has
experienced being shot down when they ask questions, so now they don’t ask questions and

¢, those few of us who persist in asking questions and are increasingly alienating the rest of the

group.
8. Overselling Guilty Pleas, Quick Trials, and Rough Justice

I believe that the vast majority of outsiders have a mistaken impression of the depravity of our
defendants and the evidence we have available to prove cases. If these cases ever see the light of
day, I think the public will perceive these people as relatively small time guys. [ also think the
defense will be surprised at how little effort was directed at law enforcement and how little we as
prosecutors have to work with. Thus, my evaluation of interest analysis here is that any defense
counsel would be crazy to advise his client to plead guilty on a non-death penalty case given the
lack of political will, the potential for effective collateral review, and the many controversial
issues that can be raised to try the case in the media and on the merits, T also don’t want to
forget full and fair — I heard the President say it — I sincerely belicve he means it and I'm fairly
certain that none of use really wish to accept anything less for these detainees no matter what
kind of scumbags we think they are. But if we can’t get moving to resolve these things, there
comes a point where the critics ave right, These detainees are in US military custody — so we
have certain obligations to uphold our country’s honor. Thus, in my view this concept of “rough
justice” is very dangetous rhetoric, If people honestly think this is going to be “rough justice:”

a. I don’t want to be a part of anything that people really believe to be rough justice and I doubt
many of my colleagues do- we ate lawyers and military officers, not vigilantes

b. We all wear the uniform of the United States of America and in doing so, not only represent
our client the United States, but also the legal tradition of the uniformed forces— rough justice is
an unworthy appellation for that tradition.

c¢. Rough justice misleads the civilian leadership — it implies simple, straightforward, quick,
without fuss, etc. This is going to be highly contentious, lengthy, burdensome, practice — the
Nuremburg experience and ICTY experience show us that. I can’t believe that our client — the
President through his representatives the SECDEF and Deputy SECDEF has been apprised of the
fact that each of these trials easily have the potential to be multimonth and maybe each take years

I am also concerned that as the resolve to detain weakens and the confusion as to detainee policy
continues, the blame game is going to shift to the OMC prosecutor’s office. As other agencies
drop their justification for holding detainees or even push for release, increasingly OMC will be
on the hot seat to justify detention when we don’t have sufficient case development to determine
which people will really be commissioned. My perception is that people are bailing out on this
policy and we are going to be stuck looking like the bad guy if we can’t substantiate the case —in
particular, the idea that we will be making charging decisions not on the culpability of

5
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defendants, but because of pressure from western Buropean gbvermncnts is really scary.

So what is the bottom line? I don’t know how we can possibly be giving the powers-that-be
decisjon quality information when there ace clearly unaccepiable shortcomings that we know
about, but haven’t addressed and don’t have the ability to address in the near foture. The
potential tragedy here is that our failure to prepare correctly and/or advise management of the
real risks may shatter their already weakened resolve resulting in clearly guilty individuals not
being held accountable for their crimes.

Where does that leave me? This jsn't some kind of statement for posterity or to cover my ass - 1
simply have certain professional reservations about how things are going and I'm not sure that 1
can reconcile these shortcomings. In fact, 1 am so disappointed in DoD’s lack of resolve/ lack of
vision here, that I’'m not sure that I am sufficiently objective to continue in this job and I don’t
want to be an obstacle to this process. I don’t want to embarrass my service, this office or you,
but I don’t wani to be part of a process that I think is wrongly managed and unlikely to change.

I’m also not so arrogant as to believe that I am central to this process or that everyone needs to
agree with me — I realize that I might be the only one who feels this way. Moreover, I haven’t
talked to my wife yet and 1 really don’t know what she will say as we made major sactifices to
come here, But you should know that when I come back fiom Christmas feave I may be asking
for reassignment. I'm not going to go away whining, but I'm not sure that I can stomach staying.
T know this is a [ot, but I wanted you to know how I feel before the holidays so there are no
surprises when ] come back.  There are truly no hard feclings on my part, I'm just not sure
what [ want to do.

v/r

(b)(6)

Major, USAT

Department of Defense, Office of the General Counsel
Office of Military Commissions, Prosecution

1931 Jefferson Davis Highway
Suite 532, Arlineton. VA 22202
Phonei®

{b)(®)

Fax:
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s Col AFJJA ,

From; [2© |maJ, Dob 0BG
Sent: Tueaday, March 18, 2004 7.4 AM

To: (bX6) Col AF/JA

Subject: FW: Allagatlons of mlsconduet and unprofesslonallsm against Chiel
Sir
Just wanted to update yo he sent the emall below out in rasponse to Col misslve to the office.

Realize this email has caused a firestorm, but didn’t anticipate the reaction fo tha faot that we emalled
We have been emailing htm for some time on the myriad of problems around hera, To be honast, it was almoat
tha only way 1o catalog even some of the masa of problerns we are facing.

! know MG Flscus was disappointed in us - while | am sorry aboul that, we really falt like we bad to make a
record. That emall was in response to & meeting w/ Gol {(£)(€) | where he attempted to gloss aver B nurnbar of our

blg " word and “E" word concems and he had Capt|(®)(©) 51tting there 1aking notes - a 1lrst ever.

Botiom lIne! didn't see how [t benefitad at all to forward our emelis anywhers, so wa didn't assesa this as
being particularly dangsrous - mareover and probably more importantly, averything sald in there fs clearly true
and the vast majorlty has bath been verlfied by other sources and ackhowledged by|{(®X6) |in previous

mestings,conversatlons, or ernalls.

®)8) |is martifisd about having embarrassed the TJAG, (can barsly get him to foous. [am less smbarassed as
] just don't think there are any good answera hers - this may not have baen the best tacls in the warid, but ! kind

of tee! like wa ara dsmned if wa do, damned if we don't.

v/t

~----Or|ginal Message:—--
From PT, DoD OGC

Sepnt: Monday, March 15, 2004 13:41
To
(b)(6)

c!
Suhject: RE; Allegations of misconduct and unprofessionalism against Chlef Prosecutor

Sle,
As you know, | too have seen and been guite roubled by the inoldents refated by both Ma} and Capt

Frankly-for my own sanlty-| have made a point not tc keep a cunning tally of ths incldente that form the
basla {or my upcoming depariure. That bglng said, the messages below (¢combinad with what I'm about to add)

are a prelly good reflaction of how | think my *list would ook,

The additions| "situaflons® that come {o mind:

1, The Moot Court: | withessed Maj and Capt[®)®  |balng urged to ralse only a fraction of the
jssues they originally foracasted. Essentlally, CDR directed them not to mount a zealous defgnse, |t

was clear that, instead of a genulne vehicle for iImproving the United States' posltion in Military
Commisslons, the moet caurt was mere window drassing-the goal being to avold crltlelsm of our cass
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preparatlon or courtyoorn presentation.

The sages assumed we were a team and that we had all played a role In the pra,paraﬁon of al Bahlul. Ag
you know, that assumptlon was comnpletely false, CDR wouldn't even let his co-counsel, Capt
get a peek Into what he was doing. [ recall asking[B)X8 | (because | was completely ignorant of the

on with prosecution cagses as “the transfer atfarney™) why he wasn' playing more of a role In the moot
court, He baslcally sald he would be Incapable of apy greater role becauss he didn't know anything and
CDR had been flylng solo for months, | also recal! dancing around questions from onae sage
ragarding the faats of the case because | knew she would be morllfled It I told her anly one guy In the
office (the one wha was reading his compound, leading questions from a piece of paper the entlra tims)
knew tho facts af what we had long thought would be the first litlgated case.

Finally, membare of the office weren't asked once for our input regarding the oulcomse of the moot cour. .
Maybe It was for the best, becausa my honest answer would have been that | was embarrazsad. (Please
nole that | wasn't aware durlng the moot court that facts wara belng misrepresented. . . | leamed that
pHerward. | would have baan even more embarrassed {and a few othar things) had | known.) | was
ambarrassed that the person you have called "our best IRigator* gavs an opening with too much detali,
too little eye eontact, choppy delivery and no apperent thems or theory. | was smbarrassed that he didn't
know his case well ancugh Yo float saamlessly through "fake® witnesees with wham he'd practiced
nurmerous times. And finslly, | was embarrassed at his curt, often hastlla reaction to what [ reslly thought
was vary miid criticism. (Frankly, I've seen Very Junlor atiorneys at the Air Force's intto-level trlal ad
coursa give simllar performances and get reducad to tears as a result of Jnstructor crtlgues; I've taught at
that course a colple imes, and | can tell you | would not have recommanded CDR for fulure

itigation duties, given his colriroom presence.)

2, Allegations of abuss at Bagram: CDR mentioned the altegatlon to me while | was dstallsd to

Hamdan. HIis comment was “a cauple of drunk FBI agants hardly conatitite a prima faole oase.” I'm sure
you recognize the problerns with that statement. ..

Other comments by GDR | have heard him, on numerous occasjons-many of which wers In your
presence-siate that he "only carad about hls case.” Only once did | hear you clarify that we 2// needad to
be concermed aboul every case (I 1ook note because | had been walling so long for It to happen). It was
Fobruary. | firmly belleve there are a numbar of things only he knows about that could have gulte an

Impact on military commisslons as a whole.

f agt fall CDR announcead that only those In ihe ranks of 0-5 and absve would have access 1o the

SCIF-regardless of thelr clearance. Ha did this under the gulse that | had left the SCIF unsecurad; but
real story Is that ho sent me to get the combinatlon to the dlat fro Upon returning, | was told to
anter-lhg combo on the dlal; | dld so, but we soon reafized that the combo ta the sipher lock was nat the
aame a8 we-thought. So CW3|(BX6)  |just started to push buttons. Remarkably, after numerous trles, [t
opened. But the Ghlef wasn't sure what he had enterad. Then CDR came and entered his PIC (|
was new lo the office and didn’t bave mine). Then CDR [(B)] instructed ms to just prop the daor sp that
cW4ENE__1(an Indlvidual he knew only had a OoTiderttelearance at the time-the rest of us found out
later) could get In and out. He pinned the whole thing on m& because, before | left for the day, I noficad
that the SCIF had been clesed but no ane signed the card ta verlly it. Noting that the dla)] was spun off
and the door (to which 1 dld not have the combo) closed, | Inltlaled the card, asked Lt Cultu

verlty, and left. COR whb was awakened bacause the SCIF alarm sgunded In the midd!e of the -
ated to close (), announced to averyone that we wolld be getting Inspected

night {no PIC had been an
and trained "because of®)®)|" He also announced the policy that only 0-5 & above would get the codes.

4. Keeping things frorn the front office: CDR knew that we had baeen diracted to keep the front office

apprised of our efforts regarding Hamdan's status on 13224. | believa that, {ike the Cole video, he has
avoided fulflliing this promise in hopes ihat they'lt simply forget. He goesn’'t want ary more evidence from

the UK because it might not be In ine with what he elready has.
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Fueling iires of hostility within the offics: the snvironment Ig ciear when things like the following acgur:
8. Following AF TJAG's visit, you stated (n an office meeting that “they clearly had an agenda’ and that
It rmust have been prompted by “something they heard from [EBXEL] o4®® |or[®) ]* At that
[t was clear to everyone that those wearing blue unlforms were not {o be ragarded as part of the

team.

b. Mr.|®X6) | durlng the first few weeks of hls asslgnment here, outlined one of the goals of hls TFD
briefing as "convince Capt This clearly implied that{(eXe)] Instead of an Intelligent member of
our team, v/as to ba regarded as a troublemaker who only ralsed points with an eye toward deralling

ourrent operations,

‘c. During a TFaQ meeting [B® arnounced that the aj Qosl team's 70+ page “proof analysis® had
been dubbed a “plece of shit' by someone in the office. LIColl®)®)  |immaediately, In front of

about ten analyats, atterneys-and maybs enlistad-demanded to know whe had ssld that.
quippad, "you know.” Then there wera 8 number of comments In the room elsary Indlcailng they
wara talking about{®)® | | was panicylarly disturbed, as this waa the same day you ennounced thet
we needed to "work ag a team.” Al lhe ooncluslon of thal meeting, there was some dlacussion .
about how tha al Qosl attorneys were having trauble getiing some Interview documentation bacause

[®)6) ]was making tham actlaulate relevange af the documents, | thought the office view of Capt [B1(]
was reflected by Mr{(®)©} responge that he cotild “take cars of Capt (Please note as
(b)(6)

slde [ssue tha "quote* was completely inaccurate.) .

No *vislon:* We reorganize conslantly. I's almost a Joke. By the flme somebody gets thelr feet wet In a
particular case or 1ask ferce, they're detalled 1o somathing else. Thls phenomaenon parplaxes me, and |
can think of no potentlal mativation for it. But it almost seems like our organizational goal Is inefflciency.
Additionally, In the case of Hamdan, It certalply appeated that | wes removed because | deemed the case
"a mess.” | thought, in telling you that | would support yaur daclsion 1o remove me, that you had a goal in
mind {l.e. detafl someone who can flx the case and get it ready without being faced by fira from CDR
in the form of “you forget that I'm your boss."). When the person who had been sltting en the case far &
year simply got It back (with no potentlal replacement counsel-except maybe an incoming Navy LT who
Yrespects GDR superiority®), it showed me that our goal here s not to best serve the Unlted States.
You told me you knew he was dafylng your orders. You told me you knew | was in a sticky situation
because he was the deputy and had besn working the cnse for a long time, but you sxpscted me lo get the
case ready. By the tima I had read the portlons of the ease flle CDA gave rte, | was gone. And I'd

Bel money the tase Is |n the same shape now as It was back then.

Appsarance of Improprlety: | have felt quite uncomfonable with the nimeraus roferences you have made
to personal contacts with an Indlvidual namedm | belleve thia person }s & Navy 0-6, You and
CDR often refer fa him as *the Pras(ding Officer," despiia the fact that no PO has yet been ohosen by
the AA, In responae to points ralsed ragarding potential defense challenges, | often hear CDR [(B)(6] say
ona of 2 things: 1. The dafenss wlill never think of/de that, or 2. [(b)(6) Jwan't let them go there. Disoussions
e these, In addition to knowledge that yeu have been sending things ke the trial procedure gulde to
Roffs for his comments, make ma very uncamfortabls. Finally, when you say things like “thase panels
aren't golng to acqult,* or “the panel members are belng carefully chosen® In responss to concerns about
how certain pleoss of avidence will play, It leads me to question whether these pracsedings wilt truly be

falr.

-=-0rfginal Messag-—-=

From: COL, DoD OGC
Sent: Monday, March 15, 2004 11:29

To;

(b)(6)

Cc: |(b)e)
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Subject: Allegations of misconduct and unprofessionzllsm against Chief Prosecutor
Ymportance: High

Al

Pleass read balow.

Capl )6 has mada some serlous aflegations against me as the Chlef Proseoutor---charges ihat, i trus,

rmandata lhat | be relleved of my duties.

Arnong other things, Capt. Insists that an “envirenment of dishonesty, secrecy, and decelt” exists
within the enlire offlce.

In an small preceding Capt. you will note that Maj. volces similar views: he states that he
is "disgusiad" with the "ack of vislon® and "lack of Integrity” In the office, and has "utter contempt” for

many of the Judge advocates sserving With us. -

Botlom line: Both Capt. [Bi(E] and Maj, beliave that what we are dolng Is so wrong that they
cannot "morally, ethically, oy professionslly comiinue to be a part of thls process.”

| am convinced to the depth ot my seul that all af us on the prosecullon team are truly dedicated to the
misslon of the Ofilce of Military Commlisslons---and that no one an tha teesm has anylhing but the highast
athloal principies. | am also convinced that what we are deing s critical to the Nallon's on-going war an
terrorism, that what we have done [n the past—and will cantinue to do in the future---s 1ruly the “right”
thing, and that tha allegations contalned in these emalls ara monstrous tles.

{t saddens me greatly that twe judge agvooates—whom | ltke very much and far whom | havs only the
greatest respoc! and admiratlon~-think otherwlse, [nfalrness to ajl of you, howaver; it Is Important that

you read what has been written about me and you.

COLFE]

-=-0Or ge-~---

From:|®©) ECPT, DoD 0GC
Sent: Monday, Macrch 15, 2004 07:56
To: [BY® | [B)E] COL, DoD OGC

ce:|(b)6)
Subject: RE: Meating with Colonel and myself, 4:00 p.m. today, Cof [R)E) | office

Slr,

| appreclated the opportunity 1o meet last Thursday night, as well as the frankness of the dlscusalon, The
toples covered and the comments made have been replaying (n my mind since we anded the maeting. 1
have also revlewed Ma| [B€) | comments [n his e-mall balow, and I agree with them In evary respect,

| feol 2 responsibliity to emphasize a few issues, { do hot think that our cutrent troubles in the offlce stem
from a olash of parsonalltles. It would be a slmple, commuan, and easlly remedled situatlan to correot {f

this wera true. Paeopla could be reassigned or removead.

It 1§ my opinfan thar our problems ara much more fundamental. Our cases are not even close ta being
adequalely investigsled or prepared for trial. Thia has béen opsenly admitted privately within the office.
There are many reasons why we find ourselves in this unforunate and uncomfortable posltion - the
starkest belng that wa have had litls to no |eedarshlp or ditectlah for the iast elght months. It appears
that instead of pausing, conduciing an honest appralgal of our gurrent preparation, and formulating an
adequate praseeullon plan for the future, we have Invested substantla| 1lme end effort to conceal our

@005
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deficlancles and risierd not only each other, but also those outside our offlos elther directly responsible
for, or asked to endorse, our efforts. My fears are not Insignifioant that the Inadaguate preparation of the
cases and misrepresentation related therelo may constitute dsreliction of duty, false officlal stataments, or

olher criminal conduct,

An environment of secrasy, decelt and dlshonesty exlsts within our offlee. This environment
appears to have besh passively allowed to flourish, if it has not been actively encouraged. The examples

aré many, but a few Include:

1. CDR mizrepresentations at the Mock Trial - CDR mada meany mlsrapreseniations at
lhe Mock Trlal, lo Include stafing that we had no reasen to bsllave fhat al Bahtul had suffered any
mistreatment or torture, When | confronted him immediately aiter tha mock trial with his notes to the

conlrary, he admittad that he was awarae of abuse allagations related specitically to al Bahlul.
Interastingly, It was because of Prnf.“:(b)(s) omments at the mock fral that we even begen to

(nquiry Inta the condltions at the detention camps in AF, which prlor to the mock trlal had been
consclously Ignorsd. Other Iroubling aspects of the mock trial include, but ara not iimited to: statsments
that we would be ready for trial In 3 days, that al Bahiul has maintainad from day one that he Is a member
of AQ, the dellbarats and mlsleading presentation of sefsct staternents from sl Etahiul, the carefu)
coordinatlan of the schadule to limit meaningful questions, tha censclous Inclusion of an overwhelming
amount of papar in the notebooks, and the refusal to includs a proof analysls.

2. Suppressing FBI Allegations of Atuse at Bagram - Over dinner and drinks nd Ltard
trom FBI agents tha! detalnees were being abused at the Bagram detentlon facllity. Lt [BYE) JtoldibXE]

after dinner thal t ]dnT_@pgmh? ullegations because it was told to tham “in confidence.” [B)(] told
DR L1Col|®)®)  [and|(b)E) anyway, and all three stated that thare was not credible evidence
and concluded on their own volition that they should not repop tha allegation to you or other members of
the offlce. Interestingly, CDR recently suggesaled the Lt|{®)X® | dasplte his lack of experlence and

Judgment, be sent 1o review the CID reponts of abuse at Bagram.

3. Refussl to give Mr. e COLE vidso - Mr. askad CDRIca for a copy of the

COLE video. | heard CDR[®X®)_|ask CDR [(b)(6) whether she shouid take a copy of the video over to Mr.
&6 DR [B)E] teld her not to, and that maybe In a faw days Mr. would forgat that he asked

(or it.

4. The disappearance/destruction of evidence - Ae | have detalled to you, my oopy of CDR
noles detalling the 302 In which 2l Bahlul claims torture and abuse la now missing from my notebook.
The 302 can not be located. Addltionally()6) | of the FBI related last week that ho called and

fo CDR sbout the syalemnatic destiuction of statementa of the delainses, and CDR sald thal
this did nat ralse any Issues.

5. “{'ve known about ihis for a year.” Hamden'’s name is on the UN 1287 lis}, and wa only learred of it
In Dec. When CDR was confronted with thls Infarmatlon, he olaimed that he had known about i for
the last year. No attempt had been made prlor. to Dea to dlscover upon whal evidence Hamdan was
added o Ihe lisi, rnd we slill don't know. 1l he was aware of this fact, one Is Isft to wonder why no Inquiry
was made whh the State Department. He made the same "I've known 2daut this for a ysar® claim about
the Tiger Team AQ 1071 brlel, although he has had many of us searching lor the jnformation confalned

within it for months.

6. CDR mierapressniailons al the oftlce overview ot his case. As dotalled in a previous e-
@'ys_rmade numerous misrepreseniatlona concerning his case at the office mesiing to

mall to you, CDR |
discuss his caso, Indloating fhat he elther consclously lied o the offlca. or does not know the facts of his

case after 1B months of warking on It.

| have dlscussed aach of these speoitic examples wilh you, and you told ma that you had taken corrective
aotlon to sorme. For example, in referenoce to paragraph 2, | asked how | was supposa fo trust these
altorneys to revlew doouments and highlight exoulpstory evidence and you responded that "when the
time comas* you would put out very dlrect guldance. | do not bollsve that ethlcal behavior Is something

that oan be directed during selscilve time periods.
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Thase examples are well known to the members of this ofilca, yet there has been no public rebuke of the
behaviors. Henca, the environment and behaviora continue to flourlah. | am laft to wonder \why at an

ofiica meetlng we were nat told:

*| understand that mlarepresentations are baing made conceming the tacts of our cases. if | find
out this happens agaln, the responsible parly Is golng to be flired."

"l understand that evidenee s belng withheld fram our olviltan lsadership. )f | find out this
‘  happena again, someone Is golng to be flred.”

*| understand that allegations of abuse are not baing brought to my atlentlon or reported o the
appropsiate authoritlas, 11 1find out this happens agaln, someone ls going fo be fired."

*( undersiand that evidence ia being hidden or destroyed. 1) find out this happens agaln,
someons Is going to ba firad.“

Even In regatds to CDR [BI) | recent behavlor towards Ma| [B8) ] and myself, the office was not told
ihe rea) toason for why he has bean remoaved as the deputy, only further feeding tha Lnderlying animasily
and Indloating thet the aollan was forced upon you and not really justiflad - If not, aUrsly you would have

taken a leas conclliatory stance.

You stated In our mesting last week that what elas can you da but Iead by exarmple.

In regord to this environment af secregy, decelt apd dishonesty, the attarneys In lhl.s offlce appear
to merely te following ihe example ihat you have get.

A faw examplas inolude:

You continue 10 make statements 1o the oftjce that you admit n private ars not true. With many of the
Jssues lIsted here, the modus operand| appeals to be for you to make a statemsnt at & mesling, pause,
Bnd when no one stsles a dlaagreement, assume that everyons {s in agreement, To the listenar, [t Is
clear that tha stalemsnts are nof true, but we are not to ¢orrsol, disagres, or question you In tront of the
or example, when | asked you basle questlons conoerning conspiracy law at an office brieting,

office. (F
CDR salled me Into hle offloe and told me that my eonduct was borderline dlsrespacttul baceuss [t

put you Jn an uncomfortable posltion.)

You have stated lor months that we are ready to go immaedlately with the firat four cases. At ihg same
{lme, a-mails are belng sant out admitting that we dan't have thé evidenice to prove the genaral
conspiracy, Iat alone the spaciilc aceusad's culpability, In faot, it may bs questioned how we are In a
battor posillon to prove ihe genera consplracy today than we were last November at the mock trlal. Of
course, it should also be noted that we have substantlally ohanged course sven since November and now
acknowledge thal the plan to prave prinoipal lability for TANBOM, KENBOM, COLE and PENTBOM was

misgulded to say the least.

We are rushing to put 8 more RTBs together for cases that you admit are not even close to being ready to
go trlal. We are also being pressed to prepare charge shasts, and you have asked that discovery letler
go out an these cases, We are led io believe that representations are belng made are that these cases

oan be proseouted In short otder, when tfils simply Is not true,

You wold the AF generals that we had no indicatlon that al Bahiul had besn tortured. it was after this
{B)E_|missing

stalement, which CDR quletly allowed 1o go uncorrected, that | brought up CDR
notes to the contrary. You admitted to me thel you were aware that al 8ahlul had made allegations of

abuse.

In our meating with OGA, thay told us that the exculpatery Iinformation, If ft existed, would be [n the 10%
that we will not get with our agreed upon searohes. | agaln brought UE)me problem that this presanis to
usin the car on the way back irom the masting, and you told me that the rules wera wrltten In $uch a way
as to not require that we conduct such thorough searches, and that we weren't golng 1o warry ebout It
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You stala In 2 morning meeling that al Bahiul has claimed °in svery statement® that he was an AQ
member, When I lold you aflar the masting thal this was not true, you lmply admitted that you hadn'l

read the slataments bLt were relying on what GDR had fold you. As! have detalled In another e~
mall, It does not appoar that CDR Is even aware of how many statements al Bahlul has made, let

alone conductad a thorough analysis,

When Ma) ralses concerns aboul him advising the AA given the potential appearance of partiality,
you advisad him not to atop glving advice, but to only glve edvice orally.

CDR haes emphasized a2t moming mestings, with you In the offlcs, that we do not need to be patiing

50 many of our concerns in e-malls and that we can Just come down and talk. Given the disparity
between what s sald In causal aonversation and the stalements mads by our leadstahlp (n e-malis, It Is
understandable (hat we havae relled more and more on written communications,

You hava repsatadly seid to the office that the milltary pansl will be handplcked and will not acquit these
detalnees, and we only neaded to worry about bullding a recard for the review pansl. In private you have
went further and stated that we are really concamed with review by academiclans 10 years from naw,

who wliil go back and plck the cases apan,

We conifnue to loster the Impression that CITF is responglble tor our troubles and Jack of avidence,

allhough we have leamed In the last few woeeks that we haven't even sat down wlih the case aganis 1o
"figure out what evidence they have and how thay have gathered Il. You acknowlsdged last week that we

will not aven try to lix the problams with CITF. What {8 perhaps most disturbing about the lack of

by our investigative agants s that it doas not appear we have ever ndequately explained 1he dsficlenciss

to the CITF leadershlp. :

Our morning maetings, brietings, and group discusslons are short and superilolal - It could be argued
dasigned fo permit a clajm that the office has discussed or debated & canaln toplc without permitiing such
meaningful dlacusslons to aclually take place. Two prosaculors werse schedulsd 15 minutes sach to go
over the facls of thelr case. Charge shesets are reviewsd by the olfice the aHsrnoon that they are (o ba
taken over fo the Deputy AA. The lay down on the general coneplracy Is aursory and devoid of
meaningful comments or suggestions. Tha fact that we did not 2pproach the F8I for aaslstance prlor ta
17 Deo ~ & month after the mook irlal - Is not only Indefensible, but an example af how thls office and
olhers have mialed outslders by prelending that Intaragency coopsratlon hes been allve and wall for

time, when In fact the opposite ja trus.

It is claimed that the Tiger Team dldnt do "shit* when in fact many of the producis (l.e., AQ 101 and the
stalemant of pradicate facts) that thay put together almost two years ago closely mirrar products that
taken us months to puttogether, in fact, even a cursory reviaw of the Tlgar Team materlals we now
(atter saveral efforis 1o get them ware sharply rebuliod by our own staft) shows that the Tiger Team had
artloulated many o} the obslaoles we now face and had watned that if these obslac)es were not removad

that prosecutlons could nol succead.

As part of thia atmosphera that you fostersd, Maj was publlely rebuked for bringing this Issue to
the group's attention and you spacifically statsd that you had reviswad the tiger taam materlals, there wag
little if any usable materlal In them, and that the demise of the tiger team had been the result of an -
unfortunate personality clash and nothing else, A review of the flles shows olhgrwlise,

From June (o Decembef, you were oniy present in the office for brlef psrfods, often less than 4 hours
evary iwo weeksa. However, Yol continued to Insiat lhat CDR apoka for you and directad those who
a-malled you with concerns ta address them with CDR it Is difffcult to bellave 1hat his deficlencies
ware unknown at that time, and consequently It Js difficulf to bailevs that you were unaware of the fact

we had Jitile to no dlrection during that time frame. The Jact that he diracted each of us in the office not to
spesak to you dirgcily was, and remains to me, aatonishing - but does permit one to arguse that they were

unaware of any difiicultles during a critical perlod of this endeaver,

One justlfication for the concealment and minlmization of the problems has been the often stated
proposillon that M@ Altenburg will be able fo remedy many of these problems when he becomes the
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Appolnting Authorlty. Howavar, you ha\_re tacontly elated that MG Altenburg Is a good frlend of youss, that
you hape he wiil ba heavlly reliant on BG Hamingway for a perlod of time, and that we wlll not be
forwarding any documentation of cases (b.g. proof analysls) to MG Altenburg which suggesta that he wilf

not be In a posltlon 1o exsrc)ss independent jJudgment or ovarsight,

It ia my opinion that the primary objective of the offics has been the advancemsnt of the process
for personal motivations — nat the proper preparation of aur esasca or tha Inierests of the

Amerlcan peapie.

The posturing of our prosecutlan team chisfs to maneuver onto the lirst case la overshadowad only by the
2eal at whioh they hide from scrutiny of review the specitlc facts of thelr casa - thereby assuring thelr

participation.

Ths evidence does not Jndicate thal our military end civilian leadsrs have bean accurately informed of the
stata of our preparafion, the true culpebility of our accuseds, or the sustalnabiiity of our efforts.

| understand Lhat part of the frustration with Maj discusslons with BG Hemingway was that you
did not have the opportunity to discues the matters with him In the flrat Instance. 1l was clear from \he
dJscusslons with BG Hemingway that he Was unawaie of tha {ack of preparation with our cases prior to
signing the charges, or many of the other prablems that we have discussad.

You haya stated that you are confident that if you told MG Altenburg that we needed more tims that he
would give Jt ta you. Undarlying thls commant [s the fact that MG Allenburg haa not been made aware of
the signlficant shortcomIngs of our cases and our lack of preparation and cooparation with oulside

agencieés.

t also have significant reeson to bellave that Mr.[®X®)  |hes not been advisad in the most accurats and
precise way. It appsaers that even the results and orltigues of tha mock irial, descrlbed llke 8o many othsr

efforts n Lhis office as a "home run,” were manipulated to prasent the maximum appearance of
endorsement (for example, the recrganizatlon and bold-face In Lt Coll®®) | ariiique that was openly"

discussad In the ofllce)

Wa orlginelly alleged that the accuseds were responsibie as principles for 8/11, the COLE and the
embassy bomblngs. Addllionelly, we elteged thai al Qosl was )nvolved with Mubarak and that al Bahlul
wag aware of Alta and Jarrah, and was somehow linkad 1o & 8/11 maeting In Malaysfa. | understand thai
algniticant palicy declslons have yet to be vetted with DOJ OLC, and that they appeared leas than totally

comfortghle with our theory of llsbillty and culpabllity of the accusads.

Ths commentis we hava heard In the offlee appaer 10 revolve around ong goa! - to get the process
advanced lo the polnt that it can not be tumed off. Wa are told that we just need to get defense counsel
asslgned, beoause then thay can't stop the process and wo can fix he prablems, We just need te gst
charges approved bacause then they can't stop the process and than maybe we can flx the problems.

f the approprlata decislonmakers are provided accurate information and determine thal we must go
forward on the path we are currenlly on, then all would be very cornmitted to accomplighing this task.
Howaver, [tinstead appears {hat the declsionmakers are belng provided false information to gst ther to
make the key dacislons, 1o anly Jearn the truth after a polnt of no return.

ft fs a1 least posslble that the appropriats officials would be more concemed about approving charges,
arralgning accuseds, and slgning more RTBs prlor lo the arguments In front of the Supreme Cour If they
knew the true atate of the cases and tha position they will be lett In this tell.

{it Is alsa unolear how the steadias refusal to have the prosecutors co-locatad with the CITF agents Is in
the Interests of the American people or the preparatlon of the cages, and could be motivated by anylhing
buta purely persona) iasue with semeona Involved In the process. You have admiited that both

organizatlons produclivity would ba greally increased.]

@ ooo
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To address at Jeast some ot ihe underlying lssues, the followlng may be proposed:

1. Aflar fully Informing the sages or invitees to the Mock Trial of the daflcléncles we now acknowledge,
soliclt their recommendations und suggssted courses of actlon.

2. Before MG Altenburg signs jn — taking on the AA responsibliity and further damaging hls lucrative
pilvata practice - fully and ecedrately brief him on the slatus of our cases, aur thoories of Habliity, and the
Ikely timetable In which we would be able 1o prepare oases after af Bahlul and al Qosl.

3. Full'y and accurntoly brief Mr.and DOJ on the status of our oasas, our theorlas of lisbility, and
the iikely limetable In which we would ba abla ta prepare cases afler al Bahlul and &l Qos.,

4. Taka Immedlate acilon within the office to deveiop a asmprehensive prosscutlon strategy.

&. Takoe Immedlate acilon wlithin the offics to establish an environment that fostars opannasa, honesty,
and ethloal behavlor.

8. Replacs ourrent presecutors with senlor axperienced tral litigalors capable of maintaining obfectivity
while zealously praparing for trial. ’

Instead, what | {ear the reaction to Maj [(bX6) and my cohcaing wiit simply be a greater effort to meke
sure that we are wallod off from the dsmaging Information - as we are aware has beean attempted in tha

pas\.

! would Iika 1o conclude with the following — when | voluntesred to asslat with thla procese and was
assigned 1o this office, | expected ihere would atleast be a minfmal sifont to eatablish a falr process and
dillgently prepare cases against signlficant accused. Instead, ) find a half-hoaned and disorganized etfon
by & skalaton group of relatively Inexperlenced attorneys 1o prossecute Jalrly low-level accused in a
process that appears Yo be rigged. Itls dittloult to bellave that the While Heuse has approved thls
sltsation, and [ fully expsct that one day, soor, someons will be called 1o anewer for what our office has

besn dolng for tha last 14 months,
| eoho Ma) befisf that | can not morally, ethieally, or profassionally continue 1o be a part of this
process. While many may slmply be concerned with 8 moment of fame and the ablifly In the future to

angage In & small-tirme praotlos, that Is nellher what } aaplre (o do, nor what | have been tralned to do, It
will be expected that | should have besn awars of the shortcomings with thls endeavor, snd that | reacted

accordingly.

v/r,

Capt

—f —
me:wl MAJ, DoD OGC

Seant: Thursday, March 11, 2004 16:15

Toi®)6) CAPT, DoD 0OGC .
Cc: [®X(6] COL, DoD OGC
ofice

Subject: RE: Meeting with Colonel and myself, 4:00 p.m. today, Col

Ma'am

While ] appreclate the sentiment, | have to tell you that § don't see a lot of Use continuing to talk
aboul this stuff, uniess your looking at reaasigning us out of thla.oHlce, | don't intend to speak far
[®®) Jaithough | know he fesls the same way, but for'rne | sincerely believe that thls process is
wrongly managed, wrongly focused and a biight an the reputation ef the armed forces. | dont
have anylbing knew to say. |am preity sure that everyone in the worid knowa iny sentiments
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about this offlce and thls process.

Certainfy there have been some unfortunate symplomailo Issues Ilke Cd¢ recently

haightened animosity towards John (and I'm not going lo let that one go either), but my
fundamenta) concerns hera have nothing to do with personallty conllicls or Intellectual

disagreements.

’

i don't think that anyone really undsrstands what our misslon Is, bit whalever we are doing here
la not an upproprlate misston. | conslder the insistence on pressing ahead with cases that would
ba merginal evan If properly prepared 1o be a severe threat 1o the reputation of the Military Justica
System and oven a fraud on the Amerlcan paople - surely they don't expsct that this {alrly half-
assad affort Is all thal we have been able to put logether after ail this time.

At the same tlme, my frank Impresslon of my calleaguas |s that thay are minlmizing and/or
concealing {he problems we are facing and the polantial embarassment of the Armed Forces
(and the people of the United Stetes) alher becausa thoy are afrald to admit mistakes, fael
powsriess to fix things, or becausa they are more concemned with thelr own repulations than they
are with doing the tight thing. Whether | am right or wrong about that, my utter contempt for most
of them makes it impossible lar me to work effectivaly.

Frankly, | bacame disgusted with the lack of vislon and In my view fhe lack ef intagrity long ago
and I no longer want to be part of the process - my mindset is such that | don't believe that | can

offectlvely partlcipate - profsssionally, athically, or morslly.

i lle awaks worrying about this every night. | find It almosl lmrosslb)n to focus on my part of the
mission - aflar all, writing a motion saying that the process wlll be fulf and fatr when you don'
really belleve it will b Is kind of hard - particularly when you want to call yourself an officer end a j

lawyer. This assignment Is quite literally ruining my lite.

l really see no way to fix this situation othar than reassignment. | dor'l want to be an obstacle to
anyoneg, but I'm no! golng to go along with things that | think ara wrenp - and I think this is

wrong.  [i's not lika I'm golng \o changes my oplnlon In order to "go along with the program.® I'm
only going to peralst In doing what 1 think Is right and at some polnt that Is going lo lead o even
harder feelings. Haif 1he office thinks wa are traltors anyway and frankly | think they are

gutless, simple-minded, self-sarving, some, or all of the Bbove so you can ses how that's going to

go...

| know even well-meaning people gel lred of hearing this, but the fact Is that | razlly can
slamach dolng this and [ really dont want to waste tima taliding about It.

PS: not pack yet, [ think ha was at FBI this sfternoan.

-----Origlna

From: € | caPT, DoD OGC

Sent: Thursday, March 11, 2004 13:36 i

Tod®)N®) ]
Cc(®® |COL, DoD OGT
Subject: Meeting with Colonel end myself, 4:00 p.m. today, Col [BYE]L_] office

Malor and Captaln

Captain [Bi(]and ] had a long talk this morning. Based oh hls expressions of concern for
soma unresolved Issuas, including both othical melters ahd parsonaf traatment of the Alr
Force lawyers, | have asked the Colonel {o mest with us sll this afternoon. This Is meant J
io be an open and frapk exchange, and a chance to put everything on the 1able far full [

discussion.

VR/AR
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I faal a responsiblilty to emphasize a few Issues. | do not think that our current troubles In the office stem from a
clash of personallties, It would be a simple, common, and easily remedied situatlon to correct if this were true.

People could be reassigned or removed. '

It )s my oplnlon that our prablems are much more fundamental, Our cases ars not even close to belng adequately
Investlgated or prepared for trlal. This has been openly admlitted privately withln the offlce. There are many
reasons why we find ourselves In this unfortunate and uncomfortable position — the siarkest being that we have
@ had llttle to no Jeadership or direction for the last elght months. [t appears that Instead of pausing, conducting an
honest appralsal of our current preparation, and formufating an adequate. prosecution plan for the futurs, we have
Invested substantlal time and etfort to conceal our-deficlencles and mislaad not only each other, but also those
outslde our office elther directly responsible for, or asked to endorse, our efforts. My fears are not insignificant
that the Inadequale preparation of the cases and misreprasentation related thersto may conslitute derefiction of

duty, faise offlciat statements, or other criminal conduct.

@ An environment of secrecy, deceit and dlsrionesty exlsts within our offlce. This environment appears to
have been passively alfowsd to fidurish, i It has not been actlvely shcouraged. The examples are many, hit a’

few include:

1. CDR misrepresantailons at the Mock Trlal — CDR made many misrepresentations atthe Mock
Trlal, fo include stating that we had no reason fo belleve that al Bahlul had suffered any mistreatment or torture.
When ] confrontad him immediately aifter the mock trial with his notes to the contrary, he admifted that he was
aware of abuse allegatlons refated spocifically o al Bahiul. Interestingly, It was because of Prof[®X® |
comments at the mock trlal-that we even began to Inquiry Into the conditlons at the detentlon camps In AF, which
prior to the mock irlal had beén consclousty Ignored. Other troubling aspects of the mock trlal include, but are not
limited to: statements that we would be ready for trial in 3 days, that al Bahlul has maintalned from dey one that
he Is a member of AQ, the deliberate and misleading pressntatlon of select statements from al Bahlul, the careful
coordination of the schedule to limit meaningful questions, the consclous Incluslon of an overwhelming amount of

paper in the notebooks, and the refusal to Include a proof analysls.
®Y®) |heard from

2. Suppressing FBI Allagatlons of Abuse at Bagram ~ Over dinner and drinks [® land (-
FBI agents that detalnees were balng abused at the Bagram detentlon faciilty, Li{®X6_|totd[® [after dinner that

they couldn't repert the allegatlons because It was told fo them “In conlidence.”[®)]told CDR [B)@)] LtCol[®X8) ]

and®X®  lanyway, and all threo stated that there was nof crédible evidence and concluded on their own
volitlon that they should not report the allegation to you or other members of the office. Interestingly, CDR

recently suggesied-the L. despite his lack of experlence and judgment, be sent to raview the CID reports
of abuse at Bagram.

3. Refusal to glve the COLE video — Mi{®® | askad CDR[®® ]twice for a copy of the COLE
video. | heard CDR|[®X6) [ask CDR whether she should take a copy of the video over to Mr.[BX8) ] CD
tald her not lo, and that maybe in a few days Mr{®X8)  |would forget that he asked for It. .

4. The dlsappearanbe/dastrucﬁon of evidence — As | have detalled to you, my copy of CDR [(B)6) | notes

detalling the 302 In which al Bahiul claims torture and abuse t5 now missing from my notebook, The 302 can not
be located. Additlonally,®®  lof the FBI related last week that he called and spoke to COR about the
systematic destruction of statements of the detalness, and CDR [B)(€] sald that-this did not ralse any Issues.

5. “I*'ve known about thls for a year.”” Hamden's name Is on the UN 1267 list, and wo only leamed of it In Dec.
When CDR [B)E]was confronted with this information, he clalmed that he had known about It for the ast year.
No attempt had besn made prior to Dec to discover upon what evidence Hamdan was added to the list, and we
still don't know. If he was aware of this fact, one is left to wonder why no ihquiry was made with the State
Department. He made the same “P've known about thls for a year” claim about the Tiger Team AQ 101 brlef,
although he has had many of us searching for the Information contained-within 1t for months.

6. CDR misrapresentations at the office overview of his case. As detalled In a-previous e-mall to
you, CDR made numerous misrepresentatlons concerning his case at the office meeting to discuss hls
cass, indicating that he elther consclously Hled 10 the office, or does not know the facts of his case after 18 months

“of working on It,

I have discussed each of these speclfic examples with you, and you told me that you had taken corrective action
to some. For exampls, in refarence to paragraph 2, | asked how | was suppose to trust these attorneys to review

13204
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documents and highlight exculpatory evidence and you responded that “when the time comes” you would put out
Ave;’y direct guldance. 1 do nat belleve that ethical behavlor Is something 1hat can be directed during selectlve time
perods,

These examples are weli known to the members of this ofice, yet there has been no public rebuke of the
behaviors. Hence, the environment and behaviars continue to flourish. | am left to wonder why at an office

meeting we were not told:

“I understand that mistrepresentations are being made conceming the facts of our cases. If [ t.}nd outthis
happens agaln, the responsible parly Is going to be flred."

“l understand that evidence Is belng withheld from our civittan leadership. if 1 find out this happens agaln,
someone s going to be flred.” /

“ understand that allegatlons of abuse are not belng brought to my atlention or reported 10 the
appropriate authoritles. If | fing out this happens agaln, someone s golng to be flred."

“t understand that evidence Is belng hidden or destroyed. If{ find out this happsns agaln, someone Is
golng to be {lred.” ) ) _ ,

Even In regards to COR[BI®1_|recent behavior towards Ma] [BIEL] and myselt, the office was not tofd the real
reason for why he has been removed as the deputy, only further feeding the underlylng animosity and Indicating
that the actlon was forced upon you and hot rea!lyjustltied —if not, surely you would have taken a less conclliatory

slance.
You stated in our meeting last week that what else can you do bu! lgad by example.

Inregard to this environment of secrecy, decelt and dlshonesty, the attorneys In this ofifce appear to

- mérely be following the exampfe that you have set.

Afew examples Inciuda:

Yo'u continue to make statements to the office that you admit In private are not true. With many of the lssues
listed hers, the modus operandl appears fo be for you to make a statement at a meeting, pause, and when no one

states a disagreement, assume that everyone Is In agreement. To the listener, It Is clear that the statements are # ,,r**

not true, but we are not to corract, disagree, or questlon you In front of the office. (For example, when | asked yo
baslc questions conceming consplracy law at an office brlefing, CDR [B)] called ma Into his office and fold me .-
that my conduct was borderiine disrespectiul becausa [t put you In ap Uncomfortable position.) oU

You have stated for months that we are ready to go Immediately with the first four cases. At the samae time, g- -
ym its are being sent out admitting that we don’t have the evidence to prove the general consplracy, let alone the
séeclﬂc accused's culpabllity. In fact, if may-be questioned how we are In a better positlon to prove the general

consplracy today than we ware last Novembet af the mock tial. Of course, it should also be noted that we have

substantally changed course evan slnce November and now acknowledge that the plan to prove principal flability
for TANBOM, KENBOM, COLE and PENTBOM was misgulded to say the least.

We are rushing to put 9 more RTBs together for cases that you admit are not even close ta being ready fo go
trial. Wae are also belng pressed to prepare charge sheets, and you have asked that discovery letter go out on
these cases. We are led to bollevo that representalions are being made are that these cases can be pmsecuted

In short order, when this-slmply Is not true,
ganerals that we had no Indicatlon that al Bahlul had been torlured. It was afler this sralement lep

You told the AF
whlch CDR [0 qu!atly allowad to go uncorrected, that | brought up CDR [B)&)_| mlssing notes to the contrary oV\‘ (

RSy

You admitted Yo me that you were aware that al Bahlul had made allegations of abuse.

In our meeting with OGA, they told us that the exculpatory information, If It exlsted, would be in the 10% that we
will not get with our agreed upon searches. | again brought up the problem that th[s presents to us In the car-on
the way back from the meaeting, ‘and you told me that the rules were written tn such a way as to not require that we

conduct such thorough searches, and that we weran’t golng to worry about It.

You state in & morning meeting that al Bahluf has claimed “In every statement” that he was an AQ member.

3/ 15/200'4 y
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When | told you after the meeiini that this'was not true, you simply admitied tDH(you hadn’t réad the statements

but were relying on what CDR [®)® | had told you. As | have detalled In another e-mall, it does not appear that
CDR Is even aware of how many statements al Bahlul has made, et afone conducted a thorough analysls.

When Maj ralses concems about him advising the AA glven the potential appsarance of partiailly, you
advised him not to stop glving advice, but to only glve advice oraliy.

CDR has emphasized at mosning mesetings, with you In the offics, that we do not need to be putling so many
of our concems In e-malls and that we oan Just come down and talk. Glven the disparity between what Js sald In

caussl conversallon and the statements-made by our leadership In e-malls, It Is understandable that we have

relled more and more on written communications. 9&‘
. : Y

You have repeatedly sald to the office that the mliitary panel wll be handplcked and wlll not acquit these - yb“

detainees, and we only needed to worry about bullding & record for the review panel, In private youhave went " X

p!

and pick the cases apatt. ) .

We contlnue to foster the Impresslon that CITF Is responsible for our troubles and lack of evidence, although we -
have leamed In the last few weeks that we haven’t even set down with the casge agents to figure out what
evldence they have and how they have gathered li. You acknowledged last week that we Wil riot even try to fix
the problems with CITF. What Is perhaps most disturbing about the lack of progress by our investigative agents Is
that It does not appear we have ever adeguatsly explalned the dellclencles to the CITF leadership.

further and siated that we are really concernad with review by ecademiclans. 10 years from now, who wlll go back

Our morning meetings, brlefings, and group discussions are short and supsrficlal ~ It could be argued deslgned to
permit a claim that the oftice has discussed or debated a certaln topic without permitiing such meanlingful
dlscussions to actually take place. Two prosecutors were scheduled 15 minutes each to go over the facts of thelr
case. Charge sheels ars reviewed by the office the aftemdon that they are to be taken over to the Depuly AA,
The lay down on the general conspiracy s cursory and devold of meaningful comments or suggestions. The {act
that we did not approach the FBI for assisiance prior to 17 Dac — a month after the mock frial — Is nat only
indefensible, butan example of how this offtce and others have misled outslders by pretending that interagency

cooperation has bieen allve and wall for some time, when in fact the opposilte Is true.

It Is claimed that the Tlger Team didn't do “shit” when In fact many of the products (l.e., AQ 101 and the statement
of predicate faets) that they put together almost two years ago closely mirror products that have taken us months
fo put togather. Infact, even a cursory review of the Tiger Team materlals we now have (after several efforts to
pet.them wars sharply rebuffed by our own staff) shows that tha Tigar Team had arliculated many of the
obstaclas we now face and had warned that If these obstacles were not ramoved that prosacutions could nof

succeed.

As part of this almosphers that you fostered, Ma) was publicly rebuked for bringing this Issue 1o the
group’s attention and you speclilcally stated that you had reviewed the tiger team malerlals, there was little If any
usable materlal in them, and that the demise of lhe tiger team had been the result of an unfortunate parsonality

clash and nothing efse. A review of the flles shows otherwise.

From June to December, you were only present In the office for brlef perlods, often less than 4 hours every two
weeks. However, you contlnued to Insist that CDR [B)] spoke for you and directed those who e-malled you with
concems to address them with CDR It Js difftcult o belleve that his deflclencles were unknown at that thme,
and consequently it Is difficult 1o belleve that you were unaware of the faot that we had fittle to no direction during
that time frame. The fact that he diracted each of us In the office not to spaak to you diractly was, and remalns to
ma, astonlshing — but does permlt one to argue that they were unaware of any dilfloultles during a orltical perlod

of thls endeavor,

One justiflcation for the concaalment and minimizalion of the problems has besn the often stated proposition that
M@ Altenbtirg will be able to remedy many of these problems when he becomes the Appolniing Authority.
Howaver, you have recently stated that MG Altenburg is a good friend of yours, that you hope he will be heavily
rellant on BG Hemingway for a perlod of time, and that we wlll not be forwarding any documentatlon of cases (e.g.-
proof analysls) to MG Altenburg which suggests that he will not be in a positfon to exerclse Indepandent jJudgment

or oversight.

It Is my opinion that the primary obfeoilve of the office has been the advancement of the process for
personal motlvations -- not the proper preparation of our cases or the Interests of the American people.
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The posturing of our prasecullon team chiefs to mansuver onto the first case Is overshadowed only by the zeel af
which they hide from scrutiny or review the specific facts of 1heir case — thereby assurng thelr participation.

The evidence does not lndlcate thal our mlltary and clvillan leaders have bean accurately Informed-of the state of
our preparation, the true culpablllty of our gocuseds, or the sustainabllity of our efforts.

I understand that part of the frustration with Maj [BIBL__1 discussions with BG HemIngway was that you did not
have the opporiunity to discuss the matters with him In the first Inslance. it was clear from the discussions with
BG Hemingway that he was unaware of the lack of preparation with our cases prior to signing the charges, or

many of the other problems lhat w'e have discussed,

You have stated that you are confident that If you told MG Altenburg that e neadsd more time that he would give
Itto you. Underlying thts comment is the fact that MG Altenburg has not been made aware of the significant -
ahonoomlngs of our cases and our lack of preparation and cooperation with outslde agencles.

t also have slgnificant reason to beileve that Mr.Whas not been advised in the most accurate and preclse
way. It appears that even the resulls and critiques of the mock trial, describad llke so many other efforts In this

office as & “home run,” wers manlpul sent the maximum appearance of endorsement (for example the/{ v -
reorganization and bold—face In LiCole)®) critique That was open ly dlséussad n the office) ?a-“

We orlginally alleged that the accuseds were responslble as principles for 9/11, the GOLE and the embassy
bomblings. Additlonally, we alleged that al Qost was Involved wih Mubarak and that al Bahlul was aware of Atta
and Jarrah, and was somehow linked to a 9/11 meeting In Malaysla. | understand that signifleant policy decisions
haye yet to be vetted with DOUJ.OLC, and that they appeared less than totaily comfortable with our theory of

_ lhiabllity and culpabllity of the accuseds.
The comments we have heard In the office appear to revolve around one goal — 1o get the prooess advanced to} /L'
por

the point that it can not be turned off. We are told that wa just need to get defense counsel asslgned, because
then they can't stop the process and we can fix the problems. We just need to get charges approved because

then they can’t stop the process and then maybe we.can fix the problems.

Il the appropriale dec!slonmakers are provlded accurate Information and detennlne that we must go forward on
the path we are currently on, than all woutd be very commiltted to accomplishing this task. Howevet, it Instead
appears that the declsionmakers are belng provided false Informatton to get them to make ths key declsions, to

‘only learn the truth after a polnt of no return

It Is at least possible that the appropriate ofﬂclafs would be more concerned about approving charges, arralgnlng
accuseds, &nd slgning more RTBs prlar 1o the .arguments In front of the Supreme Court If they knew the true state
of the cases and the poshion they will be laft In this fail. )

(It is also unclear how the steadfast refusal to have the prosecutors co-focated with the CITF agents Is In the

Interests of the American people or the preparatlon of the cases, and could be molivated by anything but a purely
parsonal Issue with someone Involvad In the procass. You have admitted that both organizations productivily

would be greally increased.)

To address at least some of the underlying 1ssues, the foliowlng may be proposad:

1. After fully informing the-sagas or Inviteas to the Mock Trlal of the deflclencles we now acknowledge, sollclt
thelr recommendations and suggested coutses of actlon

2, Before MG Altenburg signs In -- taking on the AA responsibliily and further damaging his lucratlve private
practice — fully and accurately brief him on the stafus of our cases, our theories of llabllity, and the likely timstable

In which we would be able to prepare cases after al Bahlui and al Qosl.

3. Fully and accurately brief Mr[®X®)_lend DOJ on the status of our cases, our theorles of llabfllly, and the
likely timetabte In which we would be abls to prepare cases after al Bahlul and al Qosl.

4. Take Immediate actlon within the office to develop a comprehensive prosecution strategy.

3/15/2004
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5. Take Immediate actlon within the offlce to establish an snvironment that fosters opennass, honest'y, and
sthlcal behavior,

6 Replacs current prosscutors with senlor axperlenced trial lligators capable of maintaining objectlvily whilo
zealously preparing for trial, i

Instead, what | fear the reactlon to Ma) and my concerms wiif simply be a greater effort to make sure that
we are walled oft from the damaging Informatlon — as we ars aware has bssn attempted In the past.

! would lke to conclude with the following -- when J volunteered fo assist with this process and was assigned to
this office, | expected there would at least be a minimal effort fo establish a falr process and diligently prepare
cases agalnst significant accused. Insiead, | find a half-heatted and disorganized offort by a skeleton group of

_-Telatively Inexperienced aftorneys to prosecuie falrly low-level accused In a process that appears to be rigged. It
is dlfffeult to belleve that the White House has approved thls sliuation, and I fully expact thal one day, soon,
someond will be called to answer for what our office has been doing for the last 14 months,

I echo Ma) bellet that | can not morally, ethically, or professionally continue to be a partt of this process.
Whlle many may slmply be concerned with a mament of farne and the abiflty In the future to engage in a small-
time practlcs, that Is nelther what I'aspire 1o do, nor what | have been trained to do. [t wil be expected that |
should have been aware of the shoricomings with thls endeavor, and that | reacted accordingly.

----- Orlglnal Message-----

From; Robert, MAJ, DoD OGC
Sant: Thursday, March 11, 2004 16:19
"To: Davenport, Teresa, CAPT, DoD OGC

Cc: [BX8) | [B)(€] coL, DoD 0GC
Subject: RE: Meeting wlth Colonel [EIEY] and myself, 4:00 p m. today, Col - offlce

Mad'am

While | appreclate the sentiment, | have to tell you that | don‘t see a lot of use continulng to talk about this
stuff, unless your looking at reasslgning us out of this offlce. 1don't intend to speak for John although |
know he feals the same way, but for me | sincerely believe that thls process is wrongly managed, wrongly
focused and a blight on the reputation of the armed forces. 1 don‘t have anything knew to say. | am
pretly sure lhat everyone in the world knows my sentimenis about this office and this process.

Centalnly theré have been some unfortunate symptomatlc Issues like Cdr recently helghtened
anlmoslty towards John (and I'm hot golng to fet that one go efther), but my fundamenta! concerns here

have nothing o do with personality conflicts or intefleciual disagresments.

| don't think that anyone really understands what our misslon Is, but whatever we are doing here Is not an
approprlate misslon. | conslder the Inlstence on pressing ahead with cases that would be marginal even

if ptoperfy prepared 1o be a severe threat to the reputation of the Nillltary Justice System and even a fraud

on the Amerlcah people - sutely they don't expect that this faltly hall-assed effort is all thal we have been

able to put together affer all this time.

At the samae time, my frank Impresslon of my colleagues Is that they are minimizing and/or concealing the
problems we ars facing and the potentlal embarassment of the Armed Forces (and the people of the
Unitad States) elther hocause they aro afrald o admit mistakes, feet poworless to fiX things, or because
they are more concaemed with their own reputations than they are with doing the right thing. Whether i
am right or wrong about that, my utler contempt for mos! of them makes It impossible for me to work

effectively.

Frankly, | becamo disgusted with the lack of vision and In my vlew the lack of integrily long ago and { no
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fonger want to be part of the pracess < my mindset is such that | don't belleve that I can effacilvely
partlcipate - professionally, ethically, or morally.

| ile awake worrying about thls every night. | find it almost Impossibls to focus on my part of the mlsston -
after all, writing a motion saylng that the procéss wilf be full and falr when yous don't really belleve It will be
Is kind of hard - partlcularly when you want fo call yourself an officer and a lawyer. This ass}gnment Is

- qulte literalty ruining my life.

| really see no way fo fix this situation other than reassignment. | don't want fo be an obstac{e fo anyone,
but I'm not going to go along with things that | think are wrong - and | think this Is wrong.,  It's not ke I'm
golng to change my opinion In order to “go along with the prograin.” I'm only golng to persist In dolng
what | think s right and at some polnt that Is going to lead to even harder faslings. Half the office thinks

we are traitors anyway and frankly | think they are gutless, simple-minded, seliserving, some, or all of the
_ above so you can see how that's golng to go... .

| know even well-meaning peopie gst tired of hearing thls, but the fact Is that | really can't stomach dotng
this and-l really don't want 1o waste time taiking about It.

PS: not back yet. 1 1think ke was at FBI this aftemoon.,

. CAPT, DoD 0GC
t: Thursday_March 11, 2004 13. .
To: MAJ, DoD OGC;[®®  |cpT, DoD 0GC

. Ccs [®€] COL, Dob OGC
Subject; Meeting with Colonel and myself, 4:00 p.m. today, Col offlce

Major [®X€]_1 and Captaln

Captaln [(Jand | had a long talk this moming. Based on hls expresslons of concern for some
unresolved lssues, Including both ethical matters and personal treatment of the Alr Force lawyers, |
have asked the Colonel to meet with us alf this afternaon. This Is meant to bs an open and frank
exchange, and a chance 1o put everylhlng on the 1able for full discussion.

VR/R
|(b)'(6) |

Capt, JAGC, USNR
. b()J(gﬂce of Military Commissions
(bX(6)

u N
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(B)(6)
Col AF/JA
(b)(6)
From: CPT, DoD OGC
Sent: Weednesdav. January 14, 2004 6:16
b
To: e Col AF/JA
Subject: RE: Our Conversation
Sir,

| apologize that this was not sent-eariier but | have besn out of the office all day. | am happy to provide any
clarification deemed necessary. Although we do not relish it, Maj and | can continue in our roles of
"agents of change” in an attempt to right the ship. We are just concerned about the sustainabillity of the effort and
our survivability within the office.

viT,

(b}(5)

Sent: Tuesdayv, January 13, 2004 13:21
To:[®®  |cPT, Dob 0GC

Subject: RE: Our Conversation

-Iooking for specifics, examples are great—background paper is perfect-{(P)(®)

__._.O ge.._-__

From|®® CPT, DoD OGC

Sent: T uary 13, 2004 1:18 PM
To: [®)E) | AF/JA

Subject: RE: Our Conversation

Sir,

| was hoping to clarify whether you are looking for an actual list or more of a backgrouna paper,
and whether you would like examples provided. | want to make sure | am preparing what you are
looking for.

v/t,
----- Original Message-----
From: ol AF/JA

Sent: Tuesday, January 13, 2004 12:24
To:CPT, DoD 0GC

Subject: Our Conversation

()8 1-need you to give me a specific list of the things you think are broken. E-mall or hard

copy, doesn't matter.-{(bX6)

04/15/2004




The following is an attemnpt to highlight and explain many, but not all, of the current concerns
held by active duty Air Force members of the Office of the Chief Prosecutor (Mz;j and
~ Capt relating to our office and our duties. This paper is prepared out of a sincere concern
for the mission that we have been assigned, as well as the reputation of the Air Force Judge
Advocate Corps.

1. Office Overview. The organizational difficulties and challenges faced by this office can only
be put in context if one understands our current staffing and dearth of experience. There are
currently nine attorneys on active duty in the office, to include the Chief Prosecutor. The Deputy
Prosecutor graduated law school in 1991 and Major craduated in 1994. The two Marine
0-5 team chiefs and one Army 0-4 graduated in 1996. Capt graduated in 1997, Capt
in 1998 and a Navy 0-3 in 2000. I‘b-’(e) |our very talented civilian attorney,
graduvated in 2002. The office is divided into four main teams (bodyguards, financiers, high-
threat-trigger-pullers, and explosives), with two or three attorneys assigned to each team. While
each of the attorneys, save has significant experience in military justice
prosecutions, very few if any of the prosecutors have experience with complex litigation or
voluminous discovery. Only Col and Maj have any significant experience in
international law. The prosecution team only has two paralegals and despite our anticipated
reliance on documents written in Arabic, Pushtu, and Urdu and witnesses who speak those
languages, we currently have no translators or interpreters assigned to the staff. This is despite
the fact that there is a well-known problem with documents being iranslated inaccurately and
incompletely due to the increased demands on linguists as a result of the GWOT.

2. Mission Overview. With this staff, which has been supplemented with two reserve personnel
and one DOJ attorney, we are responsible for identifying and preparing the prosecution of tens, if
not hundreds, of detainees in a legal proceeding not utilized in 50 years. The military
commissions process in and of itself is highly controversial, but the use of such a proceeding to
prosecute terrorists is completely unprecedented. Consequently, we face significant challenges
to our process in the form of public critiques, collateral court challenges, and in-court motions
and appeals practices. We anticipate significant legal challenges to the proceedings and our
assertion of jurisdiction. These challenges will be primarily based on US treaty obligations, the
evolution of international law since the last use of military commissions (post World War II),
and decades of US practice that is somewhat inconsistent with our current position. Moreover,
we are also challenged to work with the Criminal Investigative Task Force (CITF) in gathering
and preparing the case files, as well as coordinating with a host of other agencies, to include
DOJ, FBI, OGA, DIA, and the State Department to obtain access to their work products related
to the war on terrorism. DOJ/FBI in particular has massive resources devoted to investigation of
Al Qaida and Al Qaida operations, to include the TANBOM, KENBOM, and PENTTBOM
investigations.

3. Current Case Status. On July 3, 2003, the President designated six individuals as subject to
the jurisdiction of the military commissions. This was done in a document referred to as a
“Reason to Believe” (RTB) determination. Since this time period, RTB packages have been
prepared on at least eight other detainees. We are told that the Chief Prosecutor wishes to
present Maj Gen Altenberg — the new appointing authority — eight additional RTB packages
upon his arrival for coordination and the signature of the President. Additionally, we are also




told that the charge sheets for the first two or three cases have been thoroughly reviewed and are
" ready to be approved by Maj Gen Altenberg. Finally, we have been told that it is hoped that
charges will approved in 14 cases by the summer. The tnial counsel assigned to these cases have
been told to have charge sheets and trial notebooks prepared by 1 Feb 04. It is assumed that each
case will include at least one common charge - general conspiracy charge - making consistency
between the cases significant. '

4. Lack of Common Understanding within the Office. To date, and despite continued
requests, the attorneys in the office have had little, if any, discussion concerning the crimes and
elements contained in Military Commission Instruction #2. In addition to the obvious point that
everyone should have a common understanding of the crimes and elements, it is equally
important to note that the crimes and elements instruction states that it is not binding on the
military commission panel. Consequently, we will not only have to prove the conduct that meets
the elements of the offense, but also the very existence of the offense under customary
international law. It has become abundantly clear that the attormeys do not possess an
understanding of these crimes and elements or their viability under international law. Moreover,
to date, we have had little, if any, discussion regarding how charges will be drafted or what
evidence will be used to prove any particular element. In fact, until this week, we have generally
not met as an office more than once every two weeks despite numerous requests for us to do so.
Even within some teams, information is not shared with the other attorneys and input is
discouraged. We have not, as an office, reviewed or discussed the proof analysis for any case.
The proof analysis for those cases which can be located on our shared drive may be described as
less than adequate.

The lack of coordination and understanding within the office may be best illustrated by an
example from the Mock Trial of one case, presumed to be our first, which was held in
November. A number of high-level legal advisors to the administration were in attendance, and
it was understood that our performance was key to our cases moving forward. Our request to be
briefed as an office on the facts of the case prior to the Mock Trial was denied by the Deputy
Prosecutor, who was lead counsel on the case. Our request to discuss the proof analysis as an
office was also denied as a waste of time. Tellingly, no substantive input regarding the
presentation of the evidence was solicited from any attomey in the office. This lack of
knowledge not only prevented any attorney from speaking up during the discussion, but also
prevented any discussion regarding the candor of the staterents made to the guests, which has
since come into question. Although Capt is assigned to be second chair on the first case, his
requests to be briefed on the case evidence and included on witness interviews has been
repeatedly brushed aside. This had made preparation for trial extremely time-consuming and
laborious, and also ensures that no other attorney has an understanding of the evidence that we
intend to present or the reasons for those decisions.

Predictably, the attorneys in the office do not know how the charge sheets for the first cases have
been prepared or what evidence will be introduced to prove the general conspiracy. This is
despite the stated expectation that charge sheets will shortly be accomplished and potentially
approved by the Appointing Authority. Last week, we met as an office for the first time to
generally discuss the conspiracy charge. We have repeatedly requested to talk about the charge
sheet. When questions were raised at the meeting, members of the office later stated that it was




inappropriate to question how the charges would be formulated or how we would prove them in
an open setting. >

In response to many of the concerns that had been voiced, the Chief Prosecutor reorganized the
office prior to Christmas. He stated that he would be in the office on a regular basis and that we
would hold morming meetings. Additionally, “task forces” were established within the office;
most notably, Discovery, Sentencing, and al Qaida. Capt and M_r.who had
previously worked Sentencing and al Qaida, respectively, were reassigned to Discovery and
Sentencing, respectively. Mr. . a seasoned DOJ international lawyer was assigned to al
Qaida. Capt has never handled complex discovery, Mr. has never witnessed a real
sentencing case, and M.r.has no prior background with al Qaida. Por the last month, we
have been awaiting a presentation by Mr.regardjng his suggestions for proving the
necessary elements of the general AQ conspiracy.

5. Lack of Evidence Collected/Analyzed/Identified. Despite previous representations, to
include at the Mock Trial, our office currently possess little to none of the evidence that Jinks al
Qaida to the 9/11 terrorists attacks. We met with the FBI on 17 Dec and for the first time asked
if they could establish that AQ was behind the attacks in an unclassified setting. We met with
DOT just this week to ask the attorneys prosecuting in the EDVA what evidence they could
provide. We were told that they would get back to us.

Conceivably, our evidence would be gathered and produced by CITF. We have had a
significant, but unacknowledged problem obtaining useful products from CITF. There are many
excuses offered as to why the CITF relationship is unproductive, but at least one explanation is
that CITF has not been apprised of what constitutes relevant evidence for proving these
extremely controversial - even radical — charges such as conspiracy. The attorneys at CITF were
briefed this week on our vision concerning the general conspiracy, incomplete as that may be. A
meeting is also planned with the case agents next week.

We met for the first time as an office last Friday to discuss the types of evidence that each
attomey has encountered and what agency produced that evidence. We suggested that we should
develop within our office a checklist to aid in our pre-trial preparation, and that a checklist
should also be provided to our CITF agents to standardize the initial investigation of the case. It
i8 not an overstatement to say that this simple suggestion was met with much fanfare. This is
despite the fact that both suggestions (discussing the evidence and the checklist) had been made
numerous tires in the preceding months. '

6. Discovery. There has been a recent push to prepare for and provide limited discovery to the
two defense counse) assigned to represent two detainees. In the absence of a charge sheet, and
more importantly, knowledge of what evidence we intend to use to prove the common
conspiracy charge, discovery is nearly impossible. Moreover, given the lack of initial evidence
collection, much of the requested material will in fact be evidence received and reviewed for the
first time. It has been said by at least one attorney in the office (who is also a DOT attorney) that
we are approximately one-year behind in this regard.




7. Appearance of Impartially. It is important to understand that the Appointing Authority
serves not only as a convening authority in reviewing and approving charges, but also as an
appellate court since the AA may ultimately rule on motions submitted by either side. This point
is not only articulated in our Orders and Instructions, but also has been a centerpiece of the DOD
PA campaign attempting to show that the commissions will be fair. Recently, the Legal Advisor
to the AA requested a copy of the motion responses being prepared by the Prosecution. This
move has been discouraged, but it highlights the lack of understanding of roles. We have also
been informed that a move is underway to allow the Legal Advisor to the AA to officially rate
the Chief Prosecutor — a disaster from a fairness/impartiality/international law perspective.

More significantly, however, it is fairly common knowledge that the Chief Prosecutor has been
conducting ex parte communications with the officer presumptively selected to be the first
Presiding Officer. The Presiding Officer not only functions in some sense as the trial judge, but
also as a member of the jury. It has been admitted that e-mails have been exchanged concerning,
i.e., whether a guilty plea inquiry will be conducted. Even if this is technically not improper, it
is a poignant illustration of how this organization does not understand the kinds of scrutiny we
will face and the importance of maintaining an appearance of propriety at all costs.

8. Sustainability. Even if it is somehow possible to complete the first two cases, we are
extremely concerned about our ability to continue with expected follow-on cases in a timely
manner given the current procedures in place in our office and our interaction with CITF.

Conclusion. The issues described above are not raised without careful thought and
consideration. Although some limited efforts have been made to address the deficiencies, we
continued to be extremely concerned with the office’s current status and our efforts to correct the
problems have not been well-received. Our anxiety is heightened by the state of confusion and
lack of preparation within the office, the complexity of the cases, the lack of
oversight/understanding of the cases by upper management, the confidence of the public
statements regarding our state of readiness, and the ultimate impact the proceedings will have on
our country and international law. ‘




{B)(6)
Col AF/JA
From: MAJ, DoD OGC
Sent: Tuesday, March 16, 2004 3:52 PM
To: * Col AF/JA

Sir

| am assiduously avoiding emails to the anyone.

However, felt this was a nacessary update.

Today Col [B®) ] called a meeting wherein he proceeded 1o again relate how he felt that he and the office had been
unfairly maligned and that he hated to see two officers he admired and respected [(®X8)] and me) lodge such hurtful and
untruthful allegations.

As | told him and the rest of the office at the time - | am not going to stand for this and [ think he knows from my stance
that it would not be a good idea to reengage with this type of self-serving diatribe, but on the other hand it is clear that we
are at risk every moment that we are here.

Keeping In mind your many cautionary statements, [ have to tell you that | am really at wit's end and having a hard time
restraining myself. [ can deal with relatively complex issues and Intricate personnel problems, but here we are tatking
about an Army O-6 calling AF officers liars in a public setting. | don't really have any training for dealing with that.

BG Hemmingway has apparently circled the wagons around Col and mobilized the staff here to help Col with

his "response to the allegations" so | don’t expect any help from that end, but someone needs to do something about this.

[ am really trying to keep the big picture in mind, but 1t isn't easy.

As | have come to recognize that this apparently is NOT a sincere process and no one really cares if we prosecute
detainees correctly or not, my little micro view of the world has come to be the foremost consideration in my mind. | have
a family that Is depending on me - my wife gave up her career so | could come here - and these people are now directly
attacking my reputation and livelihood. To be honest, [ think this is quickly becoming a career ender for me and | am
really having a hard time taking one for the team...

vir

|(b)(5)

(b)(6)

Major, USAF

Department of Defense, Office of the General Counsel
Office of Military Commissions, Prosecution

1931 Jefferson Davis Highway

Suite 532, Arlington, VA-22202

Phone: |[®X® |

Fax: ©)6) ’
CONTTDE M AAATICE: This electronic u-ansmnssxon may contain anorncy work- : ion protected under the
attorney-client privilege, both of whtc are proverTed cedom of Informanon Act, 5 USC 552. Do not

release outside of DoD channg ian in error, please notify the
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(b)(B)
Col AF/JA
From: [©©) |MAJ. DoD OGC
Sent:  Tuesday, March 18, 2004 7:41 AM
To: [BB _  |ColAFWA
Subject: FW: Allegations of misconduct and unprofessionalism against Chisf

Sir
Just wanted 1o updats you. Wolf sent the email below out in response to Col missive to the office.

Realize this email has caused a firestorm, but didn't anticipate the reaction to the fact that we emailed
We have been emailing him for some time on the myriad of problems around here. To be honaest, it was almost
the only way to catalog even some of the mass of problems we are facing.

I know MG Fiscus was disappointed in us - while | am sorry about that, we really felt like we had to make a
record. That emall was in response to a meeting w/_Col [®)€) | where he attempted to gloss over a number of our
big "I* word and “E" word concems and he had Cap sitting there taking notes - a first ever.

Bottom line: didn't see how it benefited at all to forward our emails anywhere, 5o we didn't assess this as
being particularly dangerous - moreover and probably more importantly, everything said in there is clearly true
and the vast majority has both been verified by other sources and acknowledged by in previous

meetings,conversations, or emalls.
()8 lis montified about having embarrassed the TJAG. | can barsly get him to focus. | am less embarassed as

| just don't think there are any good answers here - this may not have been the best tactic in the world, but | kind
of feel like we are damned if we do, damned if we don't.

v/r

—--Original Message—-—
From: PT, DoD OGC

Sent: Monday, March 15, 2004 13:41

(b)(6)

Subject: RE: Allegations of misconduct and unprofesslonallsm against Chief Prosecutor

Sir,

As you know, | too have seen and been quite troubled by the incidents related by both Maj and Capt
Frankly-for my own sanity-l have made a point not to keep a running tally of the incidents that form the
basis for my upcoming depariure. That being sald, the messages below (combined with what I'm about to add)
are a pretty good reflection of how 1 think my “list* would fook.

The additionaf *situations" that come to mind:
1. The Moot Count: | witnessed Maj and Cap being urged to raise only a fraction of the
issues they originally forecasted. Essentially, CDR directed them not to mount a zealous defense. It

was clear that, instead of a genuine vehicle for improving the United Statas' position in Military
Commissions, the moot coun was mere window dressing-the goal being to avoid criticism of our case
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preparation or courtroom presentation.

The sages assumed we were a team and that we had all played a rcle in the preparation of al Bahlul. As
you know, that assumption was completely false. CDR wouldn't even let his co-counsel, Capt
get a peek into what he was doing. | recall asking John (because | was completely ignorant of the

on with prosecution cases as “the transfer attorney") why he wasn‘t playing more of a role in the moot
court. He basically said he would be incapable of any greater role because he didn't know anything and
CDR had been flying solo for months. 1 also recall dancing around questions from one sage
regarding the facts of the case because | knew she would be moriified if | told her only one guy in the
office (the one who was reading his compound, leading questions from a piece of paper the entire time)
knew the facts of what we had long thought would be the first litigated case.

Finally, members of the office weren't asked once for our input regarding the outcome of the moot court.
Maybe it was for the best, because my honest answer would have been that | was embarrassed. (Please
note that ) wasn't aware during the moot court that facts were being misrepresentad . . . | learned that
afterward. | would have besn even more embarrassed (and a few other things) had | known.) | was
embarrassed that the person you have called "our best litigator® gave an opening with too much detail,
too little eys contact, choppy delivery and no apparent theme or theory. | was embarrassed that he didn't
know his case well enough to float seamlessty through "fake” witnesses with whom he'd practiced
numerous times. And finally, | was embarrassed at his curt, often hostile reaction to what | really thought
~was very mild criticism. (Frankly, I've seen very junior attorneys at the Air Force's intro-level trial ad
course give simfar performances and get reduced to tears as a result of instructor critiques; I've taught at
that course a couple times, and | can tell you | would not have recommended CDR for future
litigatlon duties, given his courtroom presence.)

2. Allegations of abuse at Bagram: CDR mentioned the allegation to me whtls | was detailed to
Hamdan. His comment was “a couple of drunk FBI agents hardly constitute a prima facie casse." I'm sure
you recognize the problems with that statement . . .

3. Other comments by CDR | have heard him, on numerous occasions-many of which were In your
presence-state 1hat he "only cared about his case.” Only once did | hear you clarify that we alf needed to
be-concerned about every case (I took note because | had been waiting so long for it to happen). It was
February. | firmly believe there are a number of things only he knows about that could have quite an
impact on military commissions as a whole.

Last fall CDR announced that only those in the ranks of 0-5 and above would have access to the
SCIF-regardless of their clearance. He did this under the guise that | had Jeft the SCIF unsecured; but
real story Is that he sent me to get the combination to the dial from[®® | Upon returning, | was told to
enter the combo on the dial; | did 5o, but we soon realized that the combo to the sipher lock was not the
same as we thought. So CWJB)® _ Jjust started 1o push butions. Remarkably, after numerous tries, it
opened. But the Chief wasn't sure what he had entered. Then CDR came and entered his PIC (I
was new to the office and didn‘t have mine). Then CDR instructed me to just prop the door so that
CW3[E®E _ 1(an individual he knew only had a Comttemizirclearance at the time-the rest of us found out
later) could get In and out. He pinned the whole thing on me because, before | left for the day, 1 noticed
that the SCIF had been closed but no one signed the card to verify it. Noting that the dial was spun oft
and the door {to which | did not have the combo) closed, | initialed the card, asked Lt Coto
verify, and left. CDR who was awakened because the SCIF alarm sounded In the middle of the
night (no PIC had been entered to close it), announced to everyone that we would be getting inspected
and trained “"because of [PX®) | He also announced the policy that only 0-5 & above would get the codes.

4. Keeping things from the front office: CDR knew that we had been diracted to keep the front office
apprised of our efforts regarding Hamdan's status on 13224. | believe that, like the Cole video, he has
avolded fulfilling this promise in hopes that they'll simply forget. He doesn't want any more evidence from

the UK because it might not be in line with what he already has.
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5. Fueling fires of hostility within the office: the environment s clear when things like the following occur:

a. Following AF TJAG's visit, you staied in an office meeting that "they clearly had an agenda” and that
it must have been prompted by “something they heard from [®X€) ] or [®)&Jor{®® (" At that
it was clear to everyone that those wearing blue uniforms ware not to be regarded as part of the
team.

b. Mr. during the first few weeks of his assignment here, outlined one of the goals of his TFD
briefing as “convince Capt This clearly implied that instead of an intelligent member of
our team, was to be regarded as a troublemaker who only raised points with an eye toward derailing
current operations. )

c¢. During a TFaQ meeting]®®___ Jannounced that the al Qosi team's 70+ page "proof analysis® had
been dubbed a "piecs of shit' by someone in the office. LtCoIimmediately. in front of
about ten analysts, attorneys-and maybe enlisted-demanded to know who had said that.
quipped, “you know." Then there were a number of comments In the room clearly indicating they
were talking about[®®] | was particularly disturbed, as this was the same day you announced that
we needed 10 “work as a team." At the conclusion of that meeting, there was some discussion
about how the al Qosl attomeys were having trouble getting some interview documentation because

[®®) Jwas making them articulate relevance of the documents. | thought the office view of Capt
was reflected bresponse that he could "take care of Capt (Please note as a
_(b)(e)

side issue that "quote" was completely inaccurate.)

6. No “vision:" We reorganize constantly. It's almost a joke. By the time somebody gets their feet wet in a
panticular case or task force; they're detailed to something else. This phenomenon perplexas me, and |
can think of no potential motivation for it. But It almost seems like our organizational goal ig inefficlency.
Additionally, in the case of Hamdan, it certainly appeared that | was removed bacause | deemed the case
"amess.” |thought, In telling you that | would support your decision to remove me, that you had a goal in
mind (i.e. detail someone who can fix the case and get it ready without being faced by fire from CDR
in the form of "you forget that I'm your boss.”). When the person who had been sitting on the case for a
year simply got it back (with no potential replacement counsel-except maybe an incoming Navy LT who
‘respects CDR superiority"), it showed me that our goal here Is not to best serve the United States.
You told me you knew he was defying your orders. You told me you knew | was in a sticky situation
because he was the deputy and had been working the case for a long time, but you expected me to get the
case ready. By the time | had read the portions of the case file CDR gave me, | was gone. And I'd
bet money the case Is In the same shape now as it was back then,

7. Appearance of Impropriety: | have felt quite uncomfortable with the numerous references you have made
to personal contacts with an individual named[®X8) | | believe this person Is a Navy 0-6. You and
CDR often refer to him as "the Presiding Officer,” despite the fact that no PO has yet besn chosen by
the AA. In response to points raised regarding potential defense challengss, | often hear CDR say
one of 2 things: 1. The defense will never think of/do that, or 2. [BX®) Jwon't let them go there. Discusslons
ltke these, in addition to knowledge that you have been sending things like the trial procedure guide to

[®)X®) ]for his comments, make me very uncomfortable. Finally, when you say things like “these panels
aren't going to acquit,” or "the panel members are being carefully chosen" in response to concems about
how centain pleces of evidence will play, it leads me to question whether thess proceedings will truly be

fair.

-----Original Message-----

From: {b)(8 | COL, DoD OGC
Sent: Monday, March 15, 2004 11:29
To!:

(b)(6)

Cc: |(b)(5)
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Subject: Alflegations of misconduct and unprofessionalism against Chief Prosecutor
Importance: High

All:
Please read below.

Capt. [(®)(] has made some serious allegations against me as the Chief Prosecutor---charges that, if true,
mandate that | be relisved of my duties.

Among other things, Capt. insists that an "environment of dishonesty, secrecy, and deceit" exists
within the entire office.

In an email preceding Capt. [BX®)_] you will note that Maj. volces similar views: he states that he
.is "disgusted" with the “lack of vision" and "lack of integnty" In the office, and has "utter contempt” for
many of the judge advocates serving with us.

Bottom line: Both Capt. [EX] and Maj. [(B€]_] believe that what we are doing is 30 wrong that they
cannot “morally, ethically, or professionally continue to be a part of this process."

| am convinced to the depth of my soul that all of us on the prosecution team are truly dedicated to the
mission of the Office of Military Commissions---and that no one on the team has anything but the highast
ethical principles. |am also convinced that what we are doing is critical to the Nation's on-going war on
terrorism, that what we have done In the past---and will continue to do In the future—-is truly the "right*
thing, and that the allegations contained in these emails are monstrous lies.

It saddens me greatly that two judge advocates---whom | like very much and for whom | have only the
greatest respect and admiration—-think otherwise. In fairness to all of you, however, it Is important that
you read what has been written about me and you.

coL

age~---
: CPT, DoD OGC
Sent: Monday, March 15, 2004 07:56
To: [BE ] [®)E] COL, Dob OGC

Cc: [B)®) _
Subject: RE: Meeting with Colonel [(6X€)] and myself, 4:00 p.m. today, Col [EX8) ] office

Sir,

| appreclated the opportunity to meet last Thursday night, as well as the frankness of the discussion. The
topics coveraed and the comments made have been replaying in my mind since we ended the meeting. |
have also reviewed Maj comments in his e-mail below, and | agree with them in every respect.

| feel a responsibility to emphasize a few issues. | do not think that our current troubles in the office stem
from a clash of personalities. It would be a simple, common, and easily remedied situation to correct if
this were true. People could be reassigned or removed.

It is my opinion that our probfems are much more fundamental. Our cases are not even close 1o being
adequately investigated or prepared for trial. This has been openly admitted privately within the office.
There are many reasons why we find ourseives In this unfortunate and uncomfortable position - the
starkest being that we have had little to no leadership or direction for the last eight months. It appears
that instead of pausing, conducting an honest appraisal of our cursent preparation, and formulating an
adequate prosecution plan for the future, we have invested substantial time and effort to conceal our
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deficiencies and mislead not cnly each other, but also those outside our office either directly responsible
for, or asked 1o endorse, our efforts. My fears are not insignificant that the inadequate preparation of the
cases and misrepresentation related thereto may constitute dereliction of duty, false official statements, or
other criminal conduct.

An environment of secrecy, deceit and dishonesty exists within our oftice. This environment
appears tc have been passively allowed to flourish, If it has not been actively encouraged. The examples
are many, but a few include:

1. CDR misrepresentations at the Mock Trial - CDR made many misrepresentations at
the Mock Trial, to include stating that we had no reason to believe that al Bahlul had suffered any
mistreatment or torture. When | confronted him immediately after the mock trial with his notes to the
contrary, he admitted that he was aware of abuse allegations related specifically 1o al Bahlul.
Interestingly, it was because of Prof.[®X8) _ ]comments at the mock trial that we even began to
Inquiry into the conditions: at the detention camps in AF, which prior to the mock trial had been
consclously Ignored. Other troubling aspects of the mock trial include, but are not limited to: statements
that we would be ready for trial in 3 days, that al Bahlul has maintained from day one that he is a member
of AQ, the detiberate and misleading presentation of select statements from al Bahiul, the careful
coordination of the schedule to limit meaningful questions, the consclous Inclusion of an overwhelming
amount of paper in the notebooks, and the refusal to Include a proof analysis.

_2. Suppressing FBI Allegations of Abuse at Bagram - Over dinner and drinks|® heard
from FBI agents that detainees were being abused at the Bagram detention facility. Lt
after dinner that they couldn't report the allegations because it was told to them “in confidence.*[(® |
CDR [B®] LtCol [®®)__nd[®)®) anyway, and all three stated that there was not credible evidence
and concluded on their-own volition that they should not report the allegation to you or other members of
the office. interestingly, CDR recently suggested the Li®X® | despite his lack of experience and
judgment, be sent to review the CID reponts of abusse at Bagram.

3. Refusal to glve Mr. Haynes the COLE video - Mr.[®X6) _|asked CDR|PXS) |twice for a copy of the
COLE video. | heard CDR [€)6) ] ask CDR whether she should take a copy of the video over to Mr.
[(®)}8 ] CDR [(®)(6] told her not to, ana that maybe In a few days Mr.[(®)€)  |would forget that he asked

for It. '

4. The disappearance/destruction of evidence - As | have detailed to you, my copy of CDR
notes detalling the 302 In which al Bahtul claims torture and abuse is now missing from my notebook.
The 302 can not be located. Additlonally,of the FBI related last week that he called and

to CDR about the systematic destructlon of sfatements of the detainees, and CDR sald that
this did not raise any Issues.

5. “I've known about this for a year." Hamden's name Is on the UN 1267 list, and we only leamed of it

" in Dec. When CDR was confronted with this information, he claimed that he had known about it for
the last year. No attempt had been made prior to Dec to discover upon what avidence Hamdan was
added to the list, and we still don't know. If he was aware of this fact, one is left to wonder why no inquiry
was madae with the State Department. He made the same "I've known about this for a year* claim about
the Tiger Team AQ 101 brief, although.he has had many of us searching for the information contained
within it for months.

6. CDR [(6)6) | misrepresentations at the office overview of his case. As detailed In a previous e-
matl to you, CDR [(6)(6 ] made numerous misrepresentations concerning his case at the office meeting to
discuss his case, Indicating that he sither consciousty lied to the office, or does not know the facts of his
case after 18 months of working on It,

| have discussed each of these specific examples with you, and you told me that you had taken corrective
action to some. For example, in reference to paragraph 2, | asked how | was suppose to trust these
attorneys to review documents and highlight exculpatory evidence and you responded that “when ths
time comes" you would put out very dirsct guidance. | do not belisve that ethical behavior is something
that can be directed during selective time periods.
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These examples are well known to the members of this office, yet thers has been na public rebuke of the
behaviors. Hence, the environmant and behaviors continue to flourish. | am left to-wonder why at an
office meeting we were not told:

"{ understand that misrepresentations are being made concerning the tacts of our cases. If | find |
out this happens again, the responsible party is going to be fired."

" understand that evidence Is being withheld from our civilian leadership. If | find out this
happens again, someone Is going to be fired."

"| understand that allegations of abuse are not being brought to my attention or reported to the
approprate authorities. If | find out this happens agaln, someons is going 1o be fired.” ) |

"I understand that evidence is being hidden or destroyed. If I find out this happens again,
someone is going to be fired."

Even in regards to CDR recent behavior towards Maj and myself, the office was not told
the real reason for why he has been removed as the deputy, only further feeding the underlying animosity
and Indicating that the action was forced upon you and not really justified - if not, surely you would have
taken a less conciliatory stance.

You stated in our maeting last week that what else can you do but lead by example. ' |

in regard to this environment of secrecy, deceit and dishonesty, the attorneys In this office appear
to merely be following the example that you have set.

A few examples inctude:

You continue 1o make statements 1o the office that you admit in private are not frue. With many of the

Issues listed here, the modus operandi appears to be for you to make a statement at a meeting, pause,

and when no one states a disagreement, assume that everyone is in agreesment. To the listener, it is . |
clear that the statements are not true, but we are not to correct, disagree, or question you In front of the |
office. (For example, when | asked you basic questions concerning conspiracy Jaw at an office briefing, -
CDR called me into his office and told me that my conduct was borderline disrespectful because it

put you in an uncomfortable position.)

You have statad for months that we are ready to go immediately with the first four cases. Atthe same
time, e-mails are being sent out admitting that we don't have the evidence to prove the general
conspiracy, let alone the specific accused's culpability. In fact, it may be questioned how we are in a
better position to prove the general conspiracy today than we were last November at the mock trial. Of
course, It should also be noted tha! we have substantially changed course even since November and now
acknowledge that the plan to prove principal liability for TANBOM, KENBOM, COLE and PENTBOM was
misguldad to say the least.

We are rushing to put 9 more RTBs together for cases that you admit are not even close to being ready to
go trial, We are also being pressed to prepare charge sheets, and you have asked that discovery letter
go out on these cases. We are led to believe that representations are being made are that these cases
can be prosecuted in short ozder, when this simply is not true.

You lold the AF generals that we had no ingication that al Bahlul had been tortured. It was after this
statement, which CDR quietly allowed to go uncorrected, that | brought up CDR missing
notes to the contrary. You admitied to me that you were aware that al Bahlul had made allegations of
abuse.

In our meeting with OGA, they told us that the exculpatory information, if it existed, would be in the 10%
that we will not get with our agreed upon searches. | again brought up the problem that this presents to
us In the car on the way back from the meeting, and you told me that the rules were written in such a way
as to not require that we conduct such thorough searches, and that we weren't going to worry about it
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You state in a moming meeting that al Bahlul has claimed "in every statement” that he was an AQ
member. When ] told you after the meeting that this was not true, you simply admitted that you hadn't
read the statements but were relying on what CDR had told you. As | have detailed in another e-
mail, it does not appear that CDR is even aware of how many statements al Bahlul has made, let
alone conducted a thorough analysis,

When Maj raises concems about him advising the AA given the potential appearance of parilality,
you advised him not to stop giving advice, but to only give advice orally.

CDR has emphasized at moming meetings, with you In the office, that we do not need to be putting
so many of our concerns In e-mails and that we can just come down and talk. Given the disparity
between what is said In causal conversation and the statements made by our leadership in e-malls, it Is
understandable that we have relied more and more on written communications.

You have repeatedly sald to the office that the military pane! will be handpicked and will not acquit these
detainess, and we only needed to worry about building a record for the review panel. In private you have
went further and stated that we are really concermned with review by academicians 10 years from now,
who will go back and pick the cases apan.

We continue to foster the imprassion that CITF is responsible for our troubles and lack of evidence,
although we have learnad In the last few weeks that we haven even sat down with the case agents to
figure out what evidence they have and how they have gathered it. You acknowladged last week that we
will not even try to fix the problems with CITF. What is perhaps most disturbing about the lack of

by our Investigative agents Is that it does not appear we have ever adequately explained the deficiencias
to the CITF leadership,

Our moming meetings, briefings, and group discussians are shart and suparficlal - it could be argued
designed to permit a claim that the office has discussed or debated a certain topic without permitting such
meaningtul discussions to actually take place. Two prosecutors were schedulsd 15 minutes each to go
over the facts of their case. Charge sheets are reviewed by the office the aftemoon that they are to be
taken over to the Deputy AA. The lay down on the general conspiracy is cursory and devoid of
meaningful comments or suggestions. The fact that we did not approach the FBI for assistance prior to
17 Dec - a month after the mock trial - is not only indefensible, but an example of how this office and
others have misled outslders by pretending that xmeragency cooperation has been alive and well for

time, when In fact the opposite is true.

It is claimed that the Tiger Team didn do "shit" when In fact many of the products (i.e., AQ 101 and the
statement of predicate facts) that they put together almost two years ago closely mirror products that
taken us months to put together. In fact, even a cursory review of the Tiger Team materials we now
(after several efforts to get them were sharply rebuffed by our own staff) shows that the Tiger Team had
articulated many of the obstacles we now face and had wamed that if these obstacles were not removed
that prosecutions could not succeed.

As part of this atmosphere that you fostered, Maj was publicly rebuked for bringing this issue to
the group’s attention and you specificatly stated that you had reviewed the tiger team materlals, there was
little if any usable material in them, and that the demise of the tiger team had been the result of an
unfortunate personality clash and nothing else. A review of the files shows otherwise,

From June to December, you were only present In the office for brief periods, often less than 4 hours
every two weeks. However, you continued to insist that CDR spoke for you and directed those who
e-malled you with concems to address them with CDR It Is difficult to belleve that his deficiencles
were unknown at that time, and consequently it I difficult to belleve that you were unawars of the fact

we had little to no direction during that time frams. The fact that he directed each of us in the office not to
speak to you directly was, and remains to me, astonishing - but does permit one fo argue that they were
unaware of any difficulties during a critical period of this endeavor.

One justification for the concealment and minimizétion of the problems has been the often stated
proposition that MG Altenburg will be able to remedy many of these problems when he becomes the
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Appointing Authority. However, you have recently stated that MG Altenburg is a good friend of yours, that
you hope he will be heavily reliant on BG Hemingway for a period of time, and that we wlll not be
forwarding any documentation of cases (e.9. proof analysis) to MG Altenburg which suggests that he will
not be in a position to exercise independent judgment or oversight.

It Is my opinion that the primary objective of the office has been the advancement of the process
tor personal motlvations — not the proper preparation of our cases or the interests of the
American people.

The posturing of our prosecution team chiefs to mansuver onto the first case is overshadowed only by the
zeal at which they hide from scrutiny or review the spacific facts of their case - thereby assuring their
participation.

The evidence does not indicate that our mititary and clvilian leaders have been accurately Informed of the
state of our preparation, the true culpability of our accuseds, or the sustainability of our efforts.

| understand that part of the frustration with Maj discussions with BG Hemingway was that you
did not have the opportunity to discuss the matters with him in the first Instance. it was clear from the
discussions with BG Hemingway that he was unaware of the lack of preparation with our cases prior to
signing the charges, or many of the other problems that we have discussed.

You have stated that you are confident that if you told MG Altenburg that we needed more time that he
would give it to you. Underlying this comment Is the fact that MG Altenburg has not been made aware of
the significant shortcomings of our cases and our lack of preparation and cooperation with outside
agencies.

| also have significant reason to believe that Mr. has not been advised in the most accurate and
precise way. It appears that even the results and critiques of the mock trial, described like so many other
efforts in this office as a "home run," were manipulated to present the maximum appearance of .
endorsement (for example, the reorganization and bold-face In Lt Colcrjthue that was openly
discussad in the office)

We originally alleged that the accuseds were responsible as principles for 9/11, the COLE and the
embassy bombings. Additionally, we alleged that al Qosi was involved with Mubarak and that al Bahlul
was aware of Atta and Jarrah, and was somehow linked to a 9/11 meeting in Malaysia. | understand that
significant policy decisions have yet to be vetted with DOJ OLC, and that they appeared less than totally
comfortable with our theory of liability and culpability of the accuseds.

The comments we have heard in the office appear to revolve around one goal - to get the process
advanced to the point that it can not be turned off. We are told that we just need to get defense counssl
assigned, because then they can't stop the process and we can fix the problems. We just need to get
charges approved because then they cani stop the process and then maybe we can fix the problems.

If the appropriate decisionmakers are provided accurate information and determine that we must go
forward on the path we are currently on, then all would be very committed to accomptishing this task.
However, it instead appears that the decisionmakers ara being provided false information to get them to
make the key decisions, to only learn the truth after a point of no return. :

It Is at least possible that the appropriate officials would be more concerned about approving charges,
arraigning accuseds, and signing more RTBs prior to the arguments in front of the Supreme Court If they
knew the true state of the casas and the position they will be left in this fall.

(1t Is also unclear how the steadfast refusal to have the prosecutors co-located with the CITF agents (s in
the interests of the American people or the preparation of the cases, and could be motivated by anything
but a purely personal issue with someone involvad in the process. You have admitted that both
organizations productivity would be greatly increased.]
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To address at least some of the underlying issues, the following may be proposed:

1. After fully informing the sages or invitees to the Mock Trial of the deficlencies we now acknowledgs,
solicit thelr recommendations and suggested courses of action.

2. Before MG Altenburg signs in — taking on the AA responsibility and further damaging his lucrative
private practice -- fully and accurately briaf him on the status of our cases, our theories of liabllity, and the
likely timetable in which we would be able to prepare cases after al Bahlul and al Qosl.

3. Fully and accurately brief Mrand DOJ on the status of our cases, our theorles of liability, and
the likely timetable in which we would be able to prepare cases after al Bahlul and al Qosl.

4. Take Immediate action within the office 1o develop a comprehensive prosecution stratagy.

5. Take Immediate action within the oftice to establish an environment that fosters openness, honesty,
and ethical behavior.

6. Replace current prosecutors with senior experienced trial litigators capable of maintaining objectivity
while zealously preparing for trial.

Instead, what | fear the reaction to Maj and my concerns will simply be a greater etfort to make
sure that we are walled off from the damaging information - as we are aware has bsen attempted in the
past.

| would like to conclude with the following -- when | volunteered to assist with this process and was-
assigned to this office, 1 expected there would at least be a minimal effort to establish a fair process and
dililgently prepare cases against significant accused. Instead, | find a half-hearted and disorganized effort
by a skeleton group of relatively inexperienced aftorneys to prosecute fairly low-level accused in a
process that appears 10 be rigged. It is difficult to believe that the White House has approved this
situation, and | fully expect that one day, soon, someone will be called to answer for what our office has
been doing for the last 14 months.

| echo Maj belief that | can not morally, ethically, or professionally continue to be a part of this
process, While many may simply be concemed with a moment of fame and the  ability in the future to
engage In a small-time practice, that Is neither what | aspire 10 do, nor what | have been trained to do. It
will be expected that | should have been aware of the shoricomings with this endeavor, and that ! reacted
-accordingly. .

vir,

Capt

——0Original Message-—-~
From: |®X® | MAJ, DoD OGC

Sent: Thursday, March 11, 2004 16:19
To{b)E) | CAPT, DoD OGC

Cc: COL, DoD OGC
Subject: RE: Meeting with Colonel [®}8) ] and myself, 4:00 p.m. today, Col office

Ma’am

While t appreciate the sentiment, | have to tell you that 1 don't see a lot of use continuing to tatk
about this stuft, untess your looking at reassigning us out of this office. | don't intend to speak for
@)@ Rithough } know he feels the same way, but for me | sincerely believe that this process is
wrongly managed, wrongly focused and a biight on the reputation of the armed forces. | don'
have anything knew to say. | am pretty sure that everyone in the world knows my sentiments
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about this office and this process.

Certainly there have been some unfortunate symptomatic issues like Cdr recently
heightened animosity towards[®) J(and I'm not going to let that one go either), but my
fundamental concerns here have nothing to do with personality conflicts or intellectual
disagreements.

| don't think that anyone really understands what our mission is, but whatever we are doing here
Is not an appropriate mission. | consider the insistence on pressing ahead with cases that would
be marginal even if properly prepared to be a severe threat to the reputation of the Military Justice
System and even a fraud on the American people - surely they don't expect that this fairly half-
assed effort is all that we have been able to put together after all this time.

At the same time, my frank impression of my colleagues is that they are minimizing and/or
concealing the problems we are facing and the potential embarassment of the Armed Forces
(and the people of the United States) either because they are afraid to admit mistakes, feel
powerless to fix things, or because they are more concerned with their own reputations than they
are with doing the right thing. Whether | am right or wrong about that, my utter contempt for most
of them makes it impossible for me to work etfectively.

Frankly, | became disgusted with the lack of vision and in my view the lack of integrity long ago
and | no longer want to be part of the process - my mindset is such that | don't believe that | can
effectively participate - professionally, ethically, or morally.

| lie awake worrying about this every night. 1 find it almost impossible to focus on my part of the
mission - after all, writing a motion saying that the process will be full and fair when you don't
really believe it will be is kind of hard - pasticularly when you want to call yourself an officer and a
lawyer. This assignment is quite literally ruining my life.

| really see no way to fix this situation other than reassignment. | don't want to be an obstacle to
anyons, but I'm not going to go along with things that | think are wrong - and | think this is

wrong.  It's not like I'm going to change my opinion In order to “go along with the program." I'm
only going to persist in doing what | think is right and at some point that is going to fead to even
harder feelings.- Half the office thinks we are traitors anyway and frankiy 1 think they are

gutless, simple-minded, self-serving, some, or all of the above so you can see how that's going to

go...

| know even well-meaning people get tiregd of hearing this, but the fact is that | really can't

stomach doing this and | really don’t want to waste time talking about it.

PS: [B)6) |not back yet. 1 think he was at FBI this afternoon.

----- Original Message—-~
From: |[®®© | CAPT, DoD OGC

Sent: Thursdav_March 11, 2004 13:35
To MAJ, DoD OGC; CPT, DoD OGC

ce: CoL, Do 0GC
Subject: Meeting with Colonel and myself, 4:00 p.m. today, Col office

Major and Captain

Captain and ) had a long talk this morning. Based on his expressions of concem for
some unresolved issues, including both ethical matiers and personal reatment of the Air
Force lawyers, | have asked the Colone! to meet with us alf this afternoon. This is meant
to be an open and frank exchange, and a chance to put everything on the table for full
discussion.

VR/A
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‘(b)(ﬁ) |
Capt, JAGC, USNR

Office of Military Commissions
|(b)(6)
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(b)(6)

Col AF/JA

b
From: P® Imas podoGe
. Sent: vesday, March 09, 2004 4:.57 PM
To: ol AFAJA

Sir

Don't know if you remember that we finally “cracked the code" with respect to getting access to some of the Army Tiger
Team's materials after much acrimony and debate.

I now have access to a few CDs worth of material - thought you would be interested in this particular gem - 1 find it highly
ironic...

WC-First Casas_goc

No more emails today - | promise...

(b)(6)

Major, USAF

Department of Defense, Office of the General Counsel
Office of Military Commissions, Prosecution
1931 Jefferson Davis Highway

Suite 5 2o
Phone:/ 2@

(b)(B)

Fax:

attorney-client privilege, tricrere-nsgiaaladermITITCCIosure under the Freedom of Informauon Act, 5 USC 552. Do not
release outside of DoD chanaslesr o issigp in error, please notify the
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)
‘(b)(s Col AF/JA

Page 1 of 1

From: MAJ, DoD OGC

Sent:  Tuesday, March 09, 2004 2:06
To: Col AF/JA

Subject: FW: my departure
Sir

You know the only reason you are getling all these is that | told you | was sure | could keep the emails down to
one a day or So...

vir

(b)(®)

--—-Original Message—-
From CPT, DoD OGC
Sent: Tuesday, March 03, 2004 14:00
To: COL, DoD OGC
Cc:[®)6) CAPT, DoD OGC
Subject: my departure

Sir,

| recently spoke with CAPT regarding the upcoming (11 Apr 04) expiration of my orders. As | told her,
am asking that the Alr Force assign me to an alternate unit effective 12 Apr 04.

1 know you are personalty aware of my many concerns regarding our execution of the mission, organizational
integrity and functioning as a team. It is those concems that form the basis for my request for reassignment. |
don't feel | can best serve the United States in this environment.

(b)(6}

A2 mIAAA2



LG Col AF/JA

From: |(b)(s) MAJ, DoD OGC

Sent: Monday, March 08, 2004 7:46 AM
To: Col AFIJA

Sir,
| will try to keep the emails down to a dull roar this week, but a few concerns that | couldn't get into Friday night.

1. The Marine 0-5s told me that their legal advisor to the Commandant has emailed them and requested to know “why
the Alr Force has a problem with the Marines and why the AF is saying the Marines are screwed up.  Sounds like
somebody is casting this as an interservice namecalling event, but on our peon level, | believe the Marines are attributing it
to[®)¥6) ] and [ as being responsnble for the original leaks that led to questions by their people.

2. | went ahead and confronted _abom opening his big mouth with Cdrlm [(B)(E] - [(B)8) was extremely frightened
(I think because he thought | would rat to the AF). He told me that it was [(b)6] that had initiated the contact and
that had then asked him what his/®® | opinion was of [B)®) | 1think in part to justify his conversation with
old me that he had heard from “other people" that there were problems with and he related to me that he
had had heard that [BX] had been disrespactful to had walked out on him and then been counseled for his conduct.
This is the BS issue that | told you about some weeks back. While | realize that the AF would think this issue is complete
nonsense, | worry about it because it is clear that our opponents here cannot find a means of attacking [BX&)]on the merits
s0 they are attempting to run him down through other means. You know how such issues can have 2 life of thelr own and
no one ls quelling this one. Col [BXEL] was present for this alleged disrespectful behavior and didn’t say a word. From
talking wnhm [®® | | think it is particularly interesting that {B)61] * actually encouraged[®X8) " ]to chastise [B)&] So
-’is really encouraging this environment and this is now the fourth or fifth person | have heard relate this story about

[®)6) ] behavior.

3. | talked with our new deputy Navy Capt- she was told 30 min before she was appointed the deputy that she
would be the new deputy, but she was not told why (other than a statement that [(€)(6] needed to be able to focus on his
case). There was absolutsly no acknowiedgment either to her or to the group as to why we really needed a new deputy.
The [®)€] supporters nevertheless ses this as a slight of Cdr [(b)€] and they blame us.

On the good side, | did get a pretty good parking spot this moming.

(b)6)

Major, USAF

Department of Defense, Office of the General Counsel
Office of Military Commissions, Prosecution

1931 Jefferson Davis Highway
Suite-532, Arlington, VA 22202
Phone:[®©®

Fax: |“’)<6>

CORNTFTOENERRENLMATICR: This electronic transmussnon ma
atomey-client privilege, bolh of which ATCTIS :
rclease outside of D g

2 wTotney work-product or information protected under the
pder the Freedom of Lnforrnauon Act, 5 USC 552. Do not
s=snaxaission jn error, please notify the




(b)(6)

Col AFJA
From: [®®  |mAJ, DoD OGC
Sent: 01, 2004 5:41 PM
To: (b)(6) Col AF/JA
Cc: (b)0) PT, DoD OGC
Subject: Lunch at the Army Navy Club

Sir

Followup conversation with BG Hemmingway today during the trip over and then an hour long lunch at the Navy club.
He emphasized to me that this was supposed to be “away from prying eyes," which | took to mean that Col ﬁb (bX8) | and Cdr

weren't supposed to know about it.

1. He clearly believed there was a lapse of security and he was very interested In finding out who had talked to TJAG. In
fact, his first comment was "someone has obviously been talking to TJAG's office" or words 1o that effect. | told him that it
wasn’t necessarily someone going to TJAG - that the office had made a relatively poor showing during the TJAG briefing

that may have raised some concerns - while that may have been at least partlally a fib, didnt want to rat anyone out sither.

o also told me that he had to briet Mr[®X®_]in preparation for a mtg w/ the SECDEF, TJAG, ME™X®_ |and Mr
- said he needed to know if there were any problems. 1 laid it out for him in great detail, but on at least on some

points he was fairly unreceptive - particulasly as it related to quality of evidence in our possession and proof problems.

3. He clearly had an agenda of attempting to validate the theory of liability. He claimed that TJAG has been talking to the
other TJAGs about the conspiracy theory of liability and ex ressmicm]mmﬂ]hat this just wouldn't work. BG Bemmingway
stated that he had run the charge sheet by [B)®) iand (b)(6) and that both had made positive comments
about the charge sheet. My efforts 10 try to explain to him the difference between the possibility of proving the case In

theory and proving the case in fact with these fairly low level actors were unsuccessful. The key problem here is that

()(6) iand ()6 | don’t have access to the actual evidence in the first few cases and likely don't realize the problems
attendant in proving up a vast conspiracy by a compartmentalized and fragmented organization - their perspective Is the
war crimes tribunal prosecutions where there are widespread atrocities openly committed by organized groups known to a
significant number of witnesses and the offenders are physically present at the scene (aka the Serbian Army).

4. He was receptive as to the management problems and the total failure of the management during Cdr solo
tenure. When | expressed the lack of candor {or outright dishonesty) exhibited by the Chief and Deputy, he seemed at a
loss as to how to deal with it. | also emphasized that management issues aside, these horses weren't going to be able to
get the job done on the first 2 cases. He clearly agreed that this was a problem, but stated that it would be impossible at
this stage to remove the lead counsels (at least

5. He told me that he knew[®)® was planning on leaving and wondered if she was one of the ones complaining. |
avoided talking about what | knew about her departure, but suggested that she had witnessed firsthand many of the case
preparation problems and that she was frustated by the dishonesty and double dealing exhibited by Col (X8} ] In
addressing the problems - particularly on Hamden (the driver case).

6. He was also not very receptive 10 the appearance of faimess problems. In particular, he doesn't seem 10 understand
why his designation as the deputy appointing authority is going to be viewed unfavorably. | urged him that the only way to
fix any of the appearance problems would be for BG Hemmingway to recuse himself from the first few cases and bring MG
Alenberg in to review the charges and case files and make his own independent determination, but it seems clear that BG
Hemmingway doesn't think this can happen.

7. BG Hemmingway seemed very concemead with Internal personnel issues and although ) repeatedly tried 10 broach the
topic, did not seem to want 1o talk about the big picture items like the problems with mission prioritization (i.e. intel over
everything). § reengaged with him this aftemoon via email regarding lack of command authority and inability to direct
movement or compliance from our "supporting” agencies.

In sum, BG Hemmingway seemed floored by the depth of the problems and did not exhibit a willingness or perhaps the
ability to address deepseated Issues. My concern is that ha feels powerless to address the systemic problems and s
seeking ways to make cosmetic fixes.




As usual, we remain at your disposal should you need any further info.

v/r
(b)i6)

[lb)(ﬁ)
L Major, USAF

Department of Defense, Office of the General Counsel
Office of Military Commissions, Prosecution

1931 chferson Davis Highway

Suite 5

Phon=
Fax:

(b)(6)

WOTR-product or informadon protected under the
exdom of Information AcL. 5 USC 552. Do nat




(b)(6)

Col AF/JA
From: MAJ, DoD OGC
Sent: Fridav, February 27, 2004 9:32 AM
To: (0)(6) Col AF/JA
OMC Reosp Paperdoc - OMC Reatg
Powsrpaimpp!

Hay sir,

These are some notions | have been fooling with for some time - you have a paper copy of the first document, but the one
included here has been revised and includes some recommendations at the end

Don't know if it is useful to you or not, but perhaps at least a memory jogger.
| could do a lot better with the powerpoint if | understood what the inte! relationship is, but | really can’t quite figure it out.

The big thing 'm trying to show there is that a purple commander has the ability to prioritize missions and resolve conflicts
where a DoD levei agency does not the same ability without having to run to the SECDEF on a regular basls.

v/r
(b)(6)

Major, USAF

Department of Defense, Office of the General Counsel
Office of Military Commissions, Prosecution

1931 Jefferson Davis Highway
Suite 532, Arlington, VA 22202
Phone: [(0X8)

Y NOTICE: This clcctromc transmnssmn may contain attorney preetaCT O Information protected under the
alIorncy-chenl pnvilege, TTTOTT (he Fre&dom of Information Act, 5 USC 552. Do not
release outside of DoD channg ; pepefve this transmission in error, please notify the
sendgr


































